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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10−Q
x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT

OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM            TO            

Commission file number: 000−51942

LAWSON SOFTWARE, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE 20−3469219
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification Number)

380 ST. PETER STREET
ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA 55102

(Address of principal executive offices)

(651) 767−7000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days.  Yesx  Noo

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S−T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).  Yes o  No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non−accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company.
See definition of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b−2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer o

Non−accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b−2 of the Act). Yes oNo x

The number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding on September 28, 2009 was 202,153,235.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LAWSON SOFTWARE, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share data)

August 31,
2009

May 31,
2009 (1) (2)

(unaudited) (as adjusted)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $  391,302 $  414,815
Restricted cash − current 9,258 9,208
Trade accounts receivable, net 120,564 152,666
Income taxes receivable 13,875 4,242
Deferred income taxes − current 20,823 18,909
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 41,668 52,255
Total current assets 597,490 652,095

Restricted cash − non−current 2,077 1,786
Property and equipment, net 56,314 55,641
Goodwill 486,547 470,274
Other intangible assets, net 87,600 91,701
Deferred income taxes − non−current 39,229 39,835
Other assets 13,518 13,149
Total assets $  1,282,775 $  1,324,481
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Long−term debt − current $  4,070 $  4,591
Accounts payable 8,280 14,018
Accrued compensation and benefits 62,084 73,976
Income taxes payable 2,158 4,512
Deferred income taxes − current 8,479 5,652
Deferred revenue − current 246,939 279,041
Other current liabilities 38,768 56,308
Total current liabilities 370,778 438,098

Long−term debt − non−current 220,205 217,333
Deferred income taxes − non−current 17,765 16,827
Deferred revenue − non−current 10,070 13,482
Other long−term liabilities 15,048 14,781
Total liabilities 633,866 700,521
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 42,562 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding — —
Common stock; $0.01 par value; 750,000 shares authorized; 202,121 and 201,808 shares issued, respectively;

161,704 and 161,476 shares outstanding, at August 31, 2009 and May 31, 2009, respectively 2,021 2,018
Additional paid−in capital 873,781 870,722
Treasury stock, at cost; 40,417 and 40,332 shares at August 31, 2009 and May 31, 2009, respectively (324,719) (324,651)
Retained earnings 46,695 40,718
Accumulated other comprehensive income 51,131 35,153
Total stockholders’ equity 648,909 623,960
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $  1,282,775 $  1,324,481

(1) Derived from our audited Consolidated Financial Statements
(2) Adjusted to reflect adoption of FSP APB 14−1 (Note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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LAWSON SOFTWARE, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended
August 31,

2009 2008 (1)
(as adjusted)

Revenues:
License fees $ 25,935 $ 21,125
Maintenance services 85,430 89,109
Software revenues 111,365 110,234
Consulting 57,627 80,682
Total revenues 168,992 190,916

Cost of revenues:
Cost of license fees 4,927 5,332
Cost of maintenance services 15,559 16,874
Cost of software revenues 20,486 22,206
Cost of consulting 51,835 72,447
Total cost of revenues 72,321 94,653

Gross profit 96,671 96,263

Operating expenses:
Research and development 20,618 21,918
Sales and marketing 35,877 46,491
General and administrative 19,249 19,289
Restructuring (Note 3) 75 (231)
Amortization of acquired intangibles 1,880 2,627
Total operating expenses 77,699 90,094

Operating income 18,972 6,169

Other income (expense), net:
Interest income 318 3,048
Interest expense (4,450) (3,959)
Other income (expense), net (98) 72
Total other income (expense), net (4,230) (839)

Income before income taxes 14,742 5,330
Provision for income taxes 8,765 9,021
Net income (loss) $ 5,977 $ (3,691)

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 0.04 $ (0.02)
Diluted $ 0.04 $ (0.02)

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 161,112 168,394
Diluted 163,921 168,394

(1) Adjusted to reflect adoption of FSP APB 14−1 (Note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

3



Table of Contents

LAWSON SOFTWARE, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended
August 31,

2009 2008 (1)
(as adjusted)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss) $ 5,977 $ (3,691)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 10,042 10,260
Amortization of debt issuance costs 260 255
Amortization of debt discount 2,122 1,987
Deferred income taxes 3,232 140
Provision for doubtful accounts 641 (250)
Warranty provision 1,002 1,257
Net loss on disposal of assets 10 —
Excess tax benefits from stock transactions (168) (348)
Stock−based compensation expense 2,567 1,817
Amortization of discounts on marketable securities — 6
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable 32,399 34,907
Prepaid expenses and other assets 11,921 (5,362)
Accounts payable (5,884) (8,117)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (35,933) (19,004)
Income taxes payable/receivable (11,520) 5,197
Deferred revenue (37,210) (33,631)
Net cash used in operating activities (20,542) (14,577)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Change in restricted cash (277) 401
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities and investments — 49,694
Purchases of property and equipment (4,358) (6,946)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (4,635) 43,149

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on long−term debt (467) (582)
Payments on capital lease obligations (575) (130)
Cash proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,197 1,433
Excess tax benefit from stock transactions 168 348
Cash proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 550 779
Repurchase of common stock (1,284) (100,041)
Net cash used in financing activities (411) (98,193)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2,075 (5,132)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (23,513) (74,753)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 414,815 435,121
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $ 391,302 $ 360,368

(1) Adjusted to reflect adoption of FSP APB 14−1 (Note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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LAWSON SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)

1. Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation

Lawson Software is a global provider of enterprise software, services and support targeting customers in specific industries, including equipment
service management & rental, fashion, food & beverage, healthcare, manufacturing & distribution, public sector (U.S.), and service industries as well as the
horizontal market for our strategic human capital management product line. Lawson serves customers in three geographic regions: the Americas; Europe,
Middle East, and Africa (EMEA); and Asia−Pacific, including Australia and New Zealand (APAC). We offer a broad range of software applications and
industry−specific solutions that help our customers improve their business processes and reduce costs, resulting in better business or operational
performance. Lawson solutions help automate and integrate business processes and promote collaboration among our customers and their partners, suppliers
and employees. Through our consulting services, we help our customers implement, learn to use, upgrade and optimize their Lawson applications. Through
our support services, we provide ongoing maintenance and assistance to our customers.

Basis of Presentation

Our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Lawson Software, Inc., our branches and our wholly−owned and
majority−owned subsidiaries operating in the Americas, EMEA, and APAC. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Our subsidiaries that are not majority−owned are accounted for under the equity method. The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
reflect all adjustments, in the opinion of management, necessary to fairly state our consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows for
the periods presented. These adjustments consist of normal, recurring items other than the adjustments, including the out−of−period income tax, service loss
reserve and incentive compensation accrual matters, described below. The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for prior periods
include certain adjustments related to the adoption of a new accounting pronouncement that we were required to adopt retrospectively.  See Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies − Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements, for detail.

The unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes are presented as permitted by the requirements for Form 10−Q and do
not contain certain information included in our annual financial statements and notes. The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet data as of May 31, 2009
was derived from audited financial statements. The accompanying interim Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements and related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2009. The results of operations for our interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results to be achieved for our full fiscal year.

Business Segments

During fiscal 2009 and prior years, we viewed our operations and managed our business as one reportable segment, the development and
marketing of computer software and related services including consulting, maintenance and customer support. Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010,
we reorganized our operations to provide greater focus on and better serve our targeted vertical markets. With this strategic organizational change, including
a workforce realignment, we determined that we have three reportable segments that align with our three industries groups: S3 Strategic Industries, M3
Strategic Industries and General Industries. See Note 14, Segment and Geographic Information, for applicable reportable segment disclosures.

Fiscal Year

Our fiscal year is from June 1 through May 31. Unless otherwise stated, references to the years 2010 and 2009 relate to the fiscal years ended
May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. References to future years also relate to our fiscal years ending May 31.
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First Quarter Fiscal 2010 Results of Operations

Our results for fiscal 2010 include reductions to net income of approximately $0.8 million primarily as a result of $1.7 million of additional
income tax provision recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 that should have been recorded as a reduction of net income in the fourth quarter of 2009.
An additional out−of−period adjustment was recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 that increased pre−tax operating income by $0.9 million, related to
reversal of a services loss reserve that should have been reversed in the first quarter of fiscal 2008.  We have determined that the impact of these
out−of−period adjustments recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 were immaterial to our first quarter of fiscal 2010 results of operations and we expect
them to be immaterial to our full fiscal 2010 results.

First Quarter Fiscal 2009 Results of Operations

Our results for the first quarter of fiscal 2009 included reductions to net income of approximately $1.9 million primarily as a result of under
accruals of sales incentive compensation recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 that should have been recorded as a reduction of net income in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2008. These accruals primarily related to sales incentive compensation in EMEA. The fourth quarter fiscal 2008 under accrual was
primarily due to the fact that the previous accrual methodology utilized in EMEA did not sufficiently provide for (1) overachievement of sales quotas and
related higher commission rates that were achieved in EMEA in fiscal 2008 when license contracting targets were greatly exceeded by various sales
personnel, and (2) sales incentives payable to sales management employees. We have taken actions, such as redesigning the sales incentive accrual process
and enhancing monitoring controls, to mitigate the potential for replicating this matter.  We have determined that the impact of the sales incentive
compensation under accruals recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 was immaterial to our results of operations in all applicable prior interim and annual
periods.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Except to the extent updated or described below, a detailed description of our significant accounting policies can be found in Lawson’s Annual
Report on Form 10−K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009.  The following notes should be read in conjunction with such policies and other disclosures in
our Annual Report.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (U.S. GAAP) requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of our financial statements, the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods presented, as well as our disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on−going basis, we
evaluate our estimates and assumptions, including those related to revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns, fair value of
investments, fair value of share−based compensation, fair value of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, useful lives of intangible assets and property and
equipment, income taxes, restructuring obligations, contingencies and litigation, among others. We base our estimates and assumptions on our historical
experience and on various other information available to us at the time that these estimates and assumptions are made. We believe that these estimates and
assumptions are reasonable under the circumstances and form the basis for our making judgments about the carrying values of our assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results and outcomes could differ from our estimates.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

On June 1, 2009, we adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Staff Position (FSP) APB 14−1, Accounting For Convertible
Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash Upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement) (FSP APB 14−1), which impacts the accounting
treatment for convertible debt instruments that allow for either mandatory or optional cash settlements. FSP APB 14−1, issued in May 2008, impacts the
accounting associated with our $240.0 million senior convertible notes. See Note 9, Long−Term Debt, for additional information regarding our senior
convertible notes.  This FSP requires us to recognize additional (non−cash) interest expense based on the market rate for similar debt instruments that do not
contain a comparable conversion feature. Furthermore, the standard requires a retrospective adjustment for recognition of interest expense in prior periods. 
Accordingly, we have made certain adjustments to the presentation of prior period CondensedConsolidated Financial Statements. Upon adoption of FSP
APB 14−1 on June 1, 2009, we began recording additional non−cash interest expense which will total approximately $8.2 million to $8.8 million annually
or $2.1 million to $2.4 million per fiscal quarter in fiscal 2010 through fiscal 2012.

The adoption of FSP APB 14−1 required us to allocate the $240.0 million proceeds received from the issuance of our senior convertible notes
between the applicable debt and equity components.  Accordingly, we have allocated $197.7 million
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of the proceeds to the debt component of our senior convertible notes and $25.2 million, net of deferred taxes of $15.8 million and debt issuance costs of
$1.3 million, to the equity conversion feature.  The debt component allocation was based on the estimated fair value of similar debt instruments without a
conversion feature as determined by using a discount rate of 6.77% which represents our estimated borrowing rate for such debt as of the date of our senior
convertible notes issuance.  The difference between the cash proceeds associated with our senior convertible notes and the debt component was recorded as
a debt discount with a corresponding offset to additional paid−in−capital, net of applicable deferred taxes and allocated debt issuance costs, representing the
equity conversion feature.  The debt discount that we recorded is being amortized over five years, the expected term of our senior convertible notes (April
23, 2007 through April 15, 2012), using the effective interest method resulting in additional non−cash interest expense.  Debt issuance costs have been
allocated to the respective debt component and the equity conversion feature resulting in a reclassification of $1.3 million of debt issuance costs to
additional paid−in−capital.  The debt issuance costs allocated to the debt component are also being amortized to interest expense over the expected term of
our senior convertible notes.  As of August 31, 2009, the remaining period over which the debt discount and debt issuance costs will be amortized is
approximately 2.7 years.

The carrying amounts of our senior convertible notes included in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows (in thousands):

August 31, May 31,
2009 2009

(as adjusted)
Principal balance $ 240,000 $ 240,000
Debt discount (23,900) (26,022)
Senior convertible notes, net $ 216,100 $ 213,978

We have recorded the following interest expense related to our senior convertible notes in the periods presented (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
August 31,

2009 2008
(as adjusted)

Coupon rate of interest (2.5% − cash interest) $ 1,500 $ 1,500
Debt discount amortization (non−cash interest) 2,122 1,987
Debt issuance cost amortization 260 260
Net interest expense $ 3,882 $ 3,747

The following tables reflect the impact that adoption of FSP APB 14−1 had on our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands,
except per share amount) for the periods presented.

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of May 31, 2009:

As Originally
Reported

Adjustments
Related to the
Adoption of

FSP APB 14−1 As Adjusted
Deferred income taxes − non−current (asset) $ 49,565 $ (9,730) $ 39,835
Other assets 13,903 (754) 13,149
Income taxes payable 4,513 (1) 4,512
Long−term debt − non−current 243,355 (26,022) 217,333
Additional paid in capital 845,522 25,200 870,722
Retained earnings 50,379 (9,661) 40,718

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three months ended August 31, 2008:
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As Originally
Reported

Adjustments
Related to the
Adoption of

FSP APB 14−1 As Adjusted
Interest expense $ 2,038 $ 1,921 $ 3,959
Provision from income taxes 9,774 (753) 9,021
Net loss (2,523) (1,168) (3,691)
Basic and diluted net loss per share (0.01) (0.01) (0.02)

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended August 31, 2008:

As Originally
Reported

Adjustments
Related to the
Adoption of

FSP APB 14−1 As Adjusted
Net income (loss) $ (2,523) $ (1,168) $ (3,691)
Amortization of debt issuance costs 321 (66) 255
Amortization of debt discount — 1,987 1,987
Deferred income taxes 905 (765) 140
Income taxes payable/receivable 5,185 12 5,197
Net cash used in operating activities (14,577) — (14,577)

Effective June 1, 2008, we adopted the FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS
157). SFAS 157, issued in September 2006, establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to U.S. GAAP guidance requiring use of fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issued Staff
Position (FSP) 157−1 and FSP 157−2. FSP 157−1 removes certain leasing transactions from the scope of SFAS 157. FSP 157−2 partially deferred the
effective date of SFAS 157 for one year for certain nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a nonrecurring basis
(at least annually).  Our June 1, 2008 adoption date for SFAS 157 was effective for financial assets and liabilities and nonfinancial assets and liabilities that
are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis.  On June 1, 2009, we adopted SFAS 157 for our non−financial assets and liabilities that are recognized at
fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with FSP157−2. Our adoption of SFAS 157 for our financial assets and liabilities and nonfinancial assets
and liabilities that are recognized using fair value on a recurring basis did not have a significant impact on our financial position, results of operations or
cash flows. Our adoption of SFAS 157 for our non−financial assets and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a non−recurring basis also did not have
a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See Note 8, Fair Value Measurements, below.

Effective June 1, 2009, we adopted FASB SFAS No. 141(R),Business Combinations (SFAS 141(R)), which significantly changed how business
acquisitions are accounted for and will impact financial statements both on the acquisition date and in subsequent periods. SFAS 141(R), issued in
December 2007, establishes principles and requirements for the recognition and measurement of identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,
contractual contingencies, and contingent consideration at their fair value on the acquisition date. Some of the changes, such as the accounting for
contingent consideration and exclusion of transaction costs from acquisition accounting, may introduce more volatility into earnings. With the adoption of
SFAS 141(R), our accounting for future business combinations will change on a prospective basis beginning with any business combination for which the
acquisition date is after our adoption date of June 1, 2009. In addition, any restructuring liabilities established in connection with integration of an acquired
entity will have a negative impact on our future operating results as they will not be accounted for as part of the business combination but will be expensed
when incurred. In relation to previous acquisitions, the provisions of SFAS 141(R) requires any release of existing income tax valuation allowances initially
established through purchase accounting to be included in our earnings rather than as an adjustment to goodwill. This would have the effect of reducing our
income tax provision in future periods when such valuation allowances are reversed.

Also, effective June 1, 2009, we adopted the provisions of FSP 141(R)−1, Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in a Business
Combination That Arise from Contingencies (FSP 141(R)−1). FSP 141(R)−1, issued in April 2009, is intended to modify SFAS 141(R), by requiring that
assets and liabilities of contractual and noncontractual
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contingencies be recognized at fair value if the fair value can be reasonably determined during the measurement period and provides guidance on how to
make that determination.  FSP 141(R)−1 applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is after our adoption date of June 1,
2009.  Our adoption of FSP 141(R)−1 did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Effective June 1, 2009, we adopted FASB SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB
no. 51 (SFAS 160). SFAS 160, issued in December 2007, changed the accounting and reporting for minority interests, which are to be recharacterized as
noncontrolling interests and classified as a separate component of equity rather than as a liability. As of May 31, 2009 and August 31, 2009, there were no
noncontrolling interests relating to any of our subsidiaries. Accordingly, our adoption of SFAS 160 did not have a material impact on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Effective June 1, 2009, we adopted FASB FSP FAS 107−1 and APB 28−1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments (FSP
FAS 107−1 and APB 28−1).  FSP FAS 107−1 and APB 28−1, issued in April 2009, enhances consistency in financial reporting by requiring disclosures
about the fair value of financial instruments in interim reporting periods as well as in annual financial statements.  Our adoption of FSP FAS 107−1 and
APB 28−1 did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See,Fair Value of Financial Instruments, below for
applicable disclosures.

Effective June 1, 2009, we adopted FASB SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (SFAS 165). SFAS 165, issued in May 2009, establishes standards
of accounting for and disclosure of subsequent events which occur after the balance sheet date but before our financial statements are issued or are available
to be issued.  SFAS 165 requires the disclosure of the date through which we have evaluated subsequent events as well as whether that date is the date our
financial statements were issued or the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Our adoption of SFAS 165 in the first quarter of fiscal 2010
did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. We performed the requisiteevaluationof events occurring
subsequent to our quarter end of August 31, 2009 through October 7, 2009, the filing date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q for our fiscal quarter
ended August 31, 2009.  See Note 16, Subsequent Event.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, a replacement of FASB Statement No. 162 (SFAS 168), which established the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (the Codification) as the
sources for authoritative U.S. GAAP. The Codification will supersede all existing non−SEC accounting and reporting standards under U.S. GAAP for
nongovernmental entities.  SFAS 168 is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009 (our second
quarter of fiscal 2010).  Accordingly, upon our adoption of SFAS 168 effective September 1, 2009, we will begin to reference the new Codification as the
sole source of authoritative literature when referring to U.S. GAAP in our Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q for our fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2009
and all subsequent public filings. The Codification is not intended to nor does it change existing U.S. GAAP and adoption will not have any impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Derivatives

We account for derivative instruments, consisting of foreign currency forward contracts, pursuant to SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivatives
Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended (SFAS 133). SFAS 133 requires that derivative instruments be measured at fair value and recorded in the
balance sheet as either an asset or liability. We do not use derivative instruments for trading purposes. In fiscal 2010 and prior years, we have not designated
these derivative contracts as hedge transactions under SFAS 133 and have not used hedge accounting. We manage foreign currency market risk using
forward contracts to offset the risk associated with the effects of certain foreign currency exposures primarily related to non−functional currency
intercompany loans and advances between our international subsidiaries as well as other balance sheet accounts, particularly accounts receivable, accounts
payable and certain accrual accounts. Our foreign currency forward contracts are generally short term in nature, maturing within 90 days or less. We revalue
all contracts to their current market value at the end of each reporting period and unrealized gains and losses are included in general and administrative
expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for that period. These gains and losses largely offset gains and losses from the revaluation of our
non−functional currency balance sheet exposures which are also recorded in general and administrative expenses in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. This is expected to mitigate some foreign currency transaction gains or losses in future periods. Our net realized gain or loss with respect to
currency fluctuations will depend on the currency exchange rates and other factors in effect as the contracts mature. The net fair value of our foreign
currency forward contracts
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is recorded as either prepaid expenses and other current assets or other current liabilities on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The net fair value of our foreign currency forward contracts was a net asset of $0.6 million and a net liability of $0.5 million as of August 31,
2009 and May 31, 2009 and was included in prepaid expenses and other current assets, and other current liabilities, respectively, on our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 8, Fair Value Measurements, for more detail. For the comparable three month periods ended August 31, 2009 and
2008, we recorded net realized and unrealized losses related to foreign currency forward contracts of $4.3 million and net gains of $2.8 million,
respectively. All gains and losses from foreign currency forward contracts have been classified as general and administrative expense in our Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash equivalents, marketable securities, trade accounts receivable and accounts payable and foreign
currency forward contracts for which the current carrying amounts approximate fair market values, primarily due to their short periods to maturity. Our
long−term debt is carried at its face value, net of applicable debt discount recorded upon adoption ofFSP APB 14−1 as discussed above. The estimated fair
value of our 2.5% senior convertible notes, including current maturities, was $226.8 million as of August 31, 2009 based on quoted market prices. The
remainder of our long−term debt has fair values that are not materially different from their carrying values of $8.2 million.

Sales Returns and Allowances

We do not generally provide a contractual right of return. However, in the course of arriving at practical business solutions to various warranty
and other claims, we have allowed sales returns and allowances. We record a provision against revenue for estimated sales returns and allowances on license
and consulting revenues in the same period the related revenues are recorded or when current information indicates additional allowances are required.
These estimates are based on historical experience determined by analysis of return activities, specifically identified customers and other known factors. If
the historical data we utilize does not reflect expected future performance, a change in the allowances would be recorded in the period such determination is
made affecting future results of operations.

Following is a roll forward of our product warranty reserve (in thousands):

Balance, May 31, 2009 $ 7,905
Provision 1,002
Write−offs (1,056)
Curreny translation effect 47
Balance, August 31, 2009 $ 7,898

3. Restructuring

The following table sets forth the reserve activity for the three months ended August 31, 2009, related to each of our restructuring plans and the
remaining reserve balances related to severance and related benefits and exited leased facilities, which are included in accrued compensation and benefits
and other current liabilities, respectively, in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of August 31, 2009 (in thousands):
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Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2006

Total Q4 Q2
Fiscal
2007 Intentia

Legacy
Lawson

Balance, May 31, 2009 $ 15,781 $ 8,651 $ 3,346 $ 782 $ 1,475 $ 1,527
Cash Payments (3,713) (2,548) (913) (59) (80) (113)
Adjustments 75 243 (92) (76) — —
Currency translation effect 723 542 103 6 72 —
Balance, August 31, 2009 $ 12,866 $ 6,888 $ 2,444 $ 653 $ 1,467 $ 1,414

Fiscal 2009 Restructuring

Fiscal 2009 Q2.  On November 18, 2008, we announced the implementation of cost reduction measures in light of the uncertainty in global
economic conditions and in light of other operating margin improvement initiatives. These cost reduction initiatives included a restructuring plan which
called for the reduction of approximately 200 employees throughout our global workforce and the closing of one leased facility. This reduction represented
approximately 5% of our global workforce and affected all functional areas of our operations.  We recorded the majority of the restructuring expenses with a
pre−tax charge of approximately $7.9 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2009, including $6.1 million for severance and related benefits and $1.8 million
for the exit of the leased facility.  We took additional actions under the plan during the third quarter, including the reduction of 84 employees, primarily in
our services organization, representing approximately 2% of our global workforce. We exited one additional leased facility under the plan during the third
quarter. These actions resulted in an additional pre−tax charge of approximately $3.4 million recorded in the third quarter of fiscal 2009 including $2.8
million for severance and related benefits and $0.6 million for lease termination fees incurred for the exit of the additional leased facility.  We do not
anticipate taking any significant additional charges related to this plan in future periods. Actions relating to severance were substantially completed by
February 28, 2009, with related cash payments expected to continue through December 2009. Payments related to the exited facilities are expected to
continue through November 2011.

Fiscal 2009 Q4.  On May 18, 2009, we initiated a plan to restructure our workforce. At that time we began to prepare for a realignment of our
organizational structure to provide greater focus on our targeted vertical markets. The restructuring involved the reduction of certain resources outside our
targeted markets while further investing in resources that will support these markets, elimination of certain positions due to operational efficiencies and
lowering costs overall in light of the continued weakness in global business conditions. Under this plan, we will reduce our workforce by approximately 150
employees, or 4% of our global workforce, and consolidate space in certain of our leased facilities related to our international operations. Notification to
employees affected by the plan began on May 18, 2009 and personnel departures are expected to be completed by the end of our third quarter of fiscal 2010.
The plan resulted in pre−tax charges of approximately $5.3 million for severance and related benefits and the consolidation of leased facilities resulted in
pre−tax charges of approximately $3.8 million which we recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009.  We expect the majority of the severance and related
benefits to be paid within the next 12 months while the leased facilities costs will be paid through December 2011.

In relation to all restructuring actions in fiscal 2009, we made cash payments of $2.5 million relating to severance and related benefits and $0.9
million related to the exited facilities.  In the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we recorded net adjustments to the accrual of approximately $0.2 million including
additional expenses accrued related to exited leased facilities net of a change to accrued severance and related benefits due to a reduction in the number of
affected employees. As of August 31, 2009, we had an accrual of $9.3 million; $4.0 million for severance and related benefits and $5.3 million for the
estimated fair value of our liability for the exited facilities.  As of May 31, 2009, the accrual totaled $12.0 million: $6.5 million for severance and related
benefits and $5.5 million for the exited facilities.

Fiscal 2007 Restructuring

On February 28, 2007,we completed a roadmap to improve our productivity by enhancing global sourcing capabilities and resources. This
roadmap called for therebalancing of our resources between various locations primarily in the U.S., Europe and our global support center in the Philippines
and resulted in the reduction of approximately 250 employees primarily in our U.S. and European operations over the course of fiscal 2008 and the first
quarter of fiscal 2009. This reduction included employees working in all areas of the Company, predominantly in consulting and research and development.
In conjunction withthis roadmapwe recorded a charge of $11.9 million. As of May 31, 2009, we had an accrual of $0.8 million for severance and related
benefits. In the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we paid severance and related benefits of $0.1 million. We recorded $0.1 million in adjustments to the accrual
during the first quarter of fiscal 2010. The
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ending accrual balance at August 31, 2009 was approximately $0.7 million. Actions relating to severance were completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2009;
however, we expect related cash payments to continue through February 2010.

Fiscal 2006 Restructuring

On April 26, 2006, in conjunction with the business combination with Intentia International AB (Intentia), we approved a plan designed to
eliminate employee redundancies in both Intentia and Legacy Lawson.

Fiscal 2006 Legacy Lawson.  The plan for legacy Lawson included the reduction of approximately 60 employees in the U.S. and U.K. and the
exit of or reduction in space for leases in certain facilities. The reduction included employees who worked in operations, marketing, sales, research and
development, maintenance and consulting. As of May 31, 2009, we had an accrual of $1.5 million for the exit or reduction of leased facilities. For the first
quarter of fiscal 2010, we made cash payments of $0.1 million related to exited facilities. The ending accrual balance at August 31, 2009 was $1.4 million
for the exit or reduction of leased facilities. Actions relating to severance were completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. We expect cash payments
related to exited facilities to continue through July 2011.

Fiscal 2006 Intentia.  The plan for Intentia included the reduction of approximately 125 employees in the EMEA and APAC regions and the exit
of or reduction in leased space. The reduction of employees included employees who worked in all functional areas of the Company. As of May 31, 2009,
we had an accrual of $1.5 million for the exit or reduction of leased facilities. We made cash payments of $0.1 million related to exited facilities in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010. In the second quarter of fiscal 2009, we made a $1.6 million adjustment to the accrual for lease exit costs to reflect additional
sublease income not included in the original lease restructuring plan. Pursuant to the provision of EITF 95−3, Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with
a Purchase Business Combination, this adjustment has been recorded as a reduction of goodwill. See Note 6, Goodwill and Intangible Assets. The ending
balance as of August 31, 2009 was $1.5 million related to the accrual for the exit or reduction of leased space. Actions relating to severance were completed
in the third quarter of fiscal 2008. We expect cash payments related to exited facilities or reduced space to continue through June 2012.

As a result of our restructuring plans and the realignment of our workforce, we have experienced cost savings from the lower facility expenses
and reduced headcount and expect these savings to continue.

4. Share−Based Compensation

We account for share−based compensation in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (Revised), Share−Based Payments (SFAS
123(R)). SFAS 123(R) requires us to estimate the fair value of our share−based payment awards on the date of grant using an option−pricing model. We use
the Black−Scholes option−pricing model which requires the input of significant assumptions including an estimate of the average period of time employees
will retain vested stock options before exercising them, the estimated volatility of our common stock price over the expected term and the applicable
risk−free interest rate. The value of the portion of awards that are ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite vesting periods in
our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards (together restricted stock awards) is estimated based on the grant date market
value of our common stock.  For service−based restricted stock awards, compensation expense is recognized on a straight−line basis over the related service
period.  For performance−based restricted stock awards vesting based on obtaining certain performance targets (currently based on our non−GAAP
operating margin percentage), compensation expense is recognized over the related service period based on management’s assessment of the probability of
meeting such targets.  In general, applicable compensation expense is recognized when we believe it is probable that the related performance targets will be
met and no compensation expense is recorded, and any previously recognized expense recovered, when achievement of the performance target is not
deemed probable.  We assess the likelihood or probability of achieving the performance target for each vesting tranche on a quarterly basis. These
performance−based awards are to be cancelled if the applicable performance targets are not met.

Compensation expense related to our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) is estimated as the 15% discount employees receive relative to the
market value of our common stock at the end of the ESPP’s quarterly offering periods and is recognized in the applicable quarter.

The amount of share−based compensation cost recognized during any given period is based on the value of the portion of the awards that are
ultimately expected to vest. SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ significantly from the original estimates. We estimate our forfeiture rate based on historic experience of our share−based plans and any
adjustment to the estimated forfeiture rate results in a cumulative adjustment in the period that the estimate is changed. Ultimately, the total compensation
expense recognized for any given share−based award over its vesting period will only be for those shares that actually vest.
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Changes in the Black−Scholes valuation assumptions and our estimated forfeiture rate can materially affect the estimate of fair value of
share−based compensation and the related expense recognized. The assumptions used in estimating the fair value of share−based payment awards and our
estimated forfeiture rate represent management’s best estimates, which involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management’s judgment. As a
result, if factors change and different assumptions or forfeiture rates are used, our share−based compensation expense could be materially different in the
future.

The following table presents share−based compensation expense recognized in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, by
category, for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
August 31,

2009 2008

Cost of revenues $ 564 $ 63
Research and development 130 134
Sales and marketing 821 456
General and administrative 1,052 1,164
Stock−based compensation expense, before income tax 2,567 1,817
Income tax benefit (988) (700)
Stock−based compensation expense, net of tax $ 1,579 $ 1,117

As of August 31, 2009, we had unrecognized compensation expense of $14.6 million and $16.8 million related to outstanding stock options and
restricted stock awards, respectively, which we expect to recognize over weighted average periods of 1.52 years and 1.56 years, respectively.

5. Trade Accounts Receivable

The components of our trade accounts receivable were as follows (in thousands):

August 31, May 31,
2009 2009

Trade accounts receivable $ 112,470 $ 141,436
Unbilled accounts receivable 12,076 14,752
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (3,982) (3,522)
Trade accounts receivable, net $ 120,564 $ 152,666

Unbilled accounts receivable represents revenue recognized on contracts for which billings have not yet been presented to our customers because
the amounts were earned but not contractually billable as of the balance sheet date.

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill by operating segment for the three months ended August 31, 2009, was as follows (in thousands):

S3 Strategic
Industries

M3 Strategic
Industries

General
Industries

Consolidated
Total

Balance, May 31, 2009 (1) $ 201,885 $ 85,505 $ 182,884 $ 470,274
Currency translation effect 6,986 2,959 6,328 16,273
Balance, August 31, 2009 $ 208,871 $ 88,464 $ 189,212 $ 486,547

(1) Reflects the reporting segment structure effective beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010, June 1, 2009.  In fiscal 2009 and prior years we operated as
one reportable segment. See Note 14, Segment and Geographic Information.
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In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we are required to assess the carrying amount of our goodwill for potential impairment annually or more
frequently if events or a change in circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred.

Testing for goodwill impairment is a two step process. The first step screens for potential impairment and if there is an indication of possible
impairment the second step must be completed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. The first step of the goodwill impairment test, used to
identify potential impairment, compares the fair value of a reporting unit with the carrying value of its net assets. In fiscal 2009 and prior years, we had only
one reporting unit and therefore we compared our Company’s fair value to the carrying value of our consolidated net assets to complete this step one test. If
the fair value of the reporting unit had been less than the carrying value of the reporting unit, the second step of the goodwill impairment test would have
been performed to measure the amount of impairment loss we would be required to record, if any. The second step, if required, would compare the implied
fair value of Lawson’s goodwill with the current carrying amount of our goodwill. If the implied fair value of our goodwill is less than the carrying value, an
impairment charge would be recorded as a charge to our operations.

The results of our most recent annual assessment performed at the end of fiscal 2009 did not indicate any impairment of our goodwill. During
fiscal 2009 and prior years, we operated our business as one reportable segment and, under the provision of SFAS 142, as one reporting unit.  Accordingly,
our goodwill impairment assessment was conducted on a consolidated basis. During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, with our strategic reorganization and
workforce realignment, we determined that we now operate under three reportable segments: S3 Strategic Industries, M3 Strategic Industries and General
Industries. See Note 14, Segment and Geographic Information, for additional information regarding our reportable segments.  For purposes of our goodwill
impairment testing, we have determined that we have four reporting units: S3 Strategic Industries group, M3 Strategic Industries group, the services
industries component of our General Industries group and the manufacturing & distribution component of our General Industries group. Upon this change
from one reporting unit to four reporting units, effective June 1, 2009, we were required to allocate our goodwill to each reporting unit based upon their
relative fair values and we were required to perform a step one goodwill impairment test.

For purposes of allocating our recorded goodwill to our new reporting units, we estimated their fair values using a combination of an income
approach (discounted cash flow method) and a market approach (market comparable method).  Based on the results of our impairment test, the fair value
well exceeded the carrying value of the net assets for all of our reporting units.  Accordingly, there was no impairment of our goodwill.

Intangible assets subject to amortization were as follows (in thousands):

August 31, 2009 May 31, 2009
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated Estimated
Amounts Amortization Net Amounts Amortization Net useful lives

Maintenance contracts $ 22,940 $ 18,043 $ 4,897 $ 22,940 $ 17,511 $ 5,429 Term
Technology 96,759 48,286 48,473 96,643 45,596 51,047 3−10 years
Client lists 10,341 8,196 2,145 10,323 7,907 2,416 4−10 years
Customer relationships 55,470 23,560 31,910 53,917 21,308 32,609 12 years
Trademarks 5,451 5,451 — 5,263 5,263 — 2 years
Order backlog 5,967 5,967 — 5,728 5,728 — 1 year
Non−compete agreements 3,800 3,625 175 3,568 3,368 200 5 years

$ 200,728 $ 113,128 $ 87,600 $ 198,382 $ 106,681 $ 91,701

We amortize our intangible assets using underlying cash flow projections and accelerated and straight−line methods which approximate the
proportion of future cash flows estimated to be generated in each period over the estimated useful life of the applicable asset. For the three months ended
August 31, 2009 and 2008, amortization expense for intangible assets was $4.9 million and $6.0 million, respectively. Net intangible assets increased from
May 31, 2009 by approximately $1.0 million due to the effect of currency translation. Amortization expense is reported as a component of cost of revenues
and amortization of acquired intangibles in our Consolidated Statements ofOperations.

We review our intangible assets for potential impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their remaining carrying
value may not be recoverable, pursuant to the provision of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long−Lived Assets (SFAS 144). 
Due to the change in our reporting structure in the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we reassessed the recoverability of our intangible assets value and determined
that there was no impairment to be recognized as of June 1, 2009 or August 31, 2009.
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The estimated future annual amortization expense for identified intangible assets is as follows (in thousands):

2010 (remaining 9 months) $ 14,700
2011 17,072
2012 13,790
2013 11,772
2014 8,931
Thereafter 21,335

$  87,600

7. Deferred Revenue

The components of deferred revenue were as follows (in thousands):

August 31, May 31,
2009 2009

License fees $ 46,585 $ 55,667
Maintenance services 196,659 224,115
Consulting 13,765 12,741
Total deferred revenue 257,009 292,523
Less current portion (246,939) (279,041)
Deferred revenue − non−current $ 10,070 $ 13,482

In general, changes in the balance of our deferred revenue are cyclical and primarily driven by the timing of our maintenance services renewal
cycles. Our renewal dates occur in the third and fourth quarters of our fiscal year with revenues being recognized ratably over the applicable service periods.
In addition, the decrease in the August 31, 2009 balance as compared to May 31, 2009 was also related to the current recognition of certain deferred license
fees revenues in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 primarily relating to contracts entered into in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 under our targeted sales
campaign offered to our existing S3 customer base.

8. Fair Value Measurements

As previously discussed, effective June 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities and nonfinancial assets and liabilities
that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis and under the deferral provisions of FSP 157−2, we adopted SFAS 157 for non−financial asset and
liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a nonrecurring basis effective on June 1, 2009.  SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. Fair value is defined as an “exit price” which represents the amount that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date. As such, fair value
is a market−based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in valuing an asset or liability. SFAS
157 also requires the use of valuation techniques to measure fair value that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs. As a basis for considering such assumptions and inputs, SFAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy which identifies and prioritizes three levels of
inputs to be used in measuring fair value.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly including: quoted prices for similar

assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market data and require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

We measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value including our cash equivalents and foreign currency forward contracts. The
following table summarizes the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for
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at fair value on a recurring basis as of August 31, 2009 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs
Considered as Fair Value at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 August 31, 2009
Assets
Cash equivalents $ 100,666 $ 186,114 $ — $ 286,780
Foreign currency forward contracts — 638 — 638
Total $ 100,666 $ 186,752 $ — $ 287,418

Liabilities
Foreign currency forward contracts $ — $ 59 $ — $ 59
Total $ — $ 59 $ — $ 59

Cash equivalents, primarily funds held in treasuries and money market instruments, are reported at their current carrying value which
approximates fair value due to the short−term nature of these instruments and are included in cash and cash equivalents in our Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Our investments in treasuries are valued using quoted market prices and are included in Level 1 inputs. Our money market instruments are
valued primarily using observable inputs other than quoted market prices and are included in Level 2 inputs. The fair value at August 31, 2009 for cash
equivalents was $286.8 million.

Foreign currency forward contracts are valued based on observable market spot and forward rates as of our reporting date and are included in
Level 2 inputs in the above table. We use these derivative instruments to mitigate non−functional currency transaction exposure. All contracts are recorded
at fair value and marked−to−market at the end of each reporting period and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in general and
administrative expenses in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. The $0.6 million net asset related to the fair value of our foreign currency
forward contracts was included in prepaid expenses and other current assets in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In addition to the financial assets and liabilities included in the above table, certain of our nonfinancial assets and liabilities are to be measured at
fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with applicable U.S. GAAP.  This includes items such as nonfinancial assets and liabilities initially
measured at fair value in a business combination (but not measured at fair value in subsequent periods) and nonfinancial long−lived asset groups measured
at fair value for an impairment assessment.  In general, nonfinancial assets including goodwill, other intangible assets and property and equipment are
measured at fair value when there is an indication of impairment and are recorded at fair value only when any impairment is recognized.  As of August 31,
2009, we had not recorded any impairment related to such assets and we had no other material nonfinancial assets or liabilities requiring adjustments or
write−downs to properly reflect their current fair value.

We did not elect to apply the fair value option under the provisions of SFAS 159 to any of our currently eligible financial assets or liabilities. As
of August 31, 2009, our material financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value include our trade accounts receivable and accounts payable which
are reported at their current carrying values which we believe approximate their fair values.

9. Long−Term Debt

Long−term debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

August 31, May 31,
2009 2009

(as adjusted)
Senior convertible notes, interest at 2.5% $ 240,000 $ 240,000
Debt discount (23,898) (26,022)
Car loans, interest at average rate of 4.7% 4,452 4,384
Capital lease obligations, interest at 7.9% 3,721 3,562
Total long−term debt 224,275 221,924
Less current maturities (4,070) (4,591)
Total long−term debt − non−current $ 220,205 $ 217,333
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In April 2007, we issued $240.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 2.5% senior convertible notes with net proceeds, after expenses, of
approximately $233.5 million. The notes mature on April 15, 2012. The notes bear interest at a rate of 2.5% per annum, which is payable semi−annually in
arrears, on April 15 and October 15 of each year, beginning October 15, 2007. The notes do not contain any restrictive financial covenants.  The notes are
convertible, at the holder’s option, into cash and, if applicable, shares of our common stock based on an initial conversion rate of 83.2293 shares of common
stock per $1,000 principal amount of notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $12.02 per share (which reflects a 35.0%
conversion premium based on the closing sale price of $8.90 per share of Lawson common stock as reported by NASDAQ on April 17, 2007).See Note 7,
Long−Term Debt and Credit Facilities,  in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10−K for our fiscal year ended May
31, 2009 and Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies − Adoption of  New Accounting Pronouncements, above for additional information
regarding our accounting for this debt.

We had certain business relationships with Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc. (Lehman OTC), including a convertible note hedge
transaction and a warrant transaction both entered into as part of the issuance of our senior convertible notes and an accelerated share repurchase
transaction, see Note 15, Repurchase of Common Shares.  The bankruptcy filings of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. (Lehman Holdings) on September 15,
2008, as guarantor under the convertible note hedge transaction, and the bankruptcy filing by Lehman OTC onOctober 3, 2008,were events of default
under the hedge transaction and warrant agreements. As a result of these defaults, we exercised our rights to terminate both the convertible note hedge
transaction and the warrant transaction on October 10, 2008.  Accordingly, for financial reporting purposes, we recorded the estimated fair value of the
related hedge transaction asset and the warrant liability during the second quarter of fiscal 2009 resulting in a decrease in our stockholders’ equity equal to
the net amount of the recorded asset and liability. As of August 31, 2009, our claim against Lehman Holdings and Lehman OTC and Lehman Holdings’ and
Lehman OTC’s claim against us had not been settled.

On June 4, 2009, counsel for Lehman Holdings and Lehman OTC demanded payment from us of the termination−date fair value of the warrant,
asserted that in the contracts we have waived the right to setoff against the amounts owed to us under the hedge transaction and claimed we violated the
bankruptcy stay in asserting setoff rights. We have refused payment and contend that the contracts and the U.S. Bankruptcy Code give us legal rights in this
dispute.

The terms of the senior convertible notes and the rights of note holders are not affected by the status of Lehman Holdings or Lehman OTC or by
any termination of the hedge transaction or warrant.

We have an uncommitted credit facility that consists of a guarantee line with Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken (SEB) in the amount of $4.2
million (30.0 million Swedish Krona). The facility is collateralized by a corporate letter of guarantee by Lawson Software, Inc. As of August 31, 2009, an
insignificant amount was outstanding under the guarantee line and approximately $4.2 million was potentially available under the guarantee line.

10. Income Taxes

Our quarterly tax expense is measured using an estimated annual effective tax rate for the period.  For the three months ended August 31, 2009,
our estimated annual global effective tax rate was 39.1% after considering those entities for which no tax benefit from operating losses is expected to occur
during the year as a result of such entities requiring a full valuation allowance against current year losses.  We estimate our annual effective tax rate on a
quarterly basis and make any necessary changes to adjust the rate for the applicable year−to−date period based upon the annual estimate. The estimated
annual tax rate may fluctuate due to changes in forecasted annual operating income, changes in the jurisdictional mix of the forecasted annual operating
income, positive or negative changes to the valuation allowance for net deferred tax assets, changes to actual or forecasted permanent book to tax
differences, impacts from future tax settlements with state, federal or foreign tax authorities or impacts from enacted tax law changes.  We identify items
which are unusual and non−recurring in nature and treat these as discrete events. The tax effect of discrete items is booked entirely in the quarter in which
the discrete event occurs.

Our income tax expense for the three months ended August 31, 2009 was $8.8 million.  This resulted in an overall effective tax rate of 59.5% for
the first quarter of fiscal 2010.  The rate for the current quarter was unfavorably impacted by 5.4% for unbenefitted foreign losses and by 4.2% for return to
provision true−ups.  In addition, the rate for the current quarter was unfavorably impacted by 11.7% for additional income tax provision recorded in the first
quarter of 2010 that should have been recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009.  For the three months ended August 31, 2008, our income tax expense
was $9.0 million which resulted in an overall effective tax rate for the first quarter of fiscal 2009 of 169.2%.

As of August 31, 2009, we have recorded a liability of approximately $7.9 million for unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions,
all of which would affect earnings and the effective tax rate, if recognized.  We recognize
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interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits and penalties, if incurred, as a component of our income tax expense.  During the three months ended
August 31, 2009 we recognized approximately $0.1 million in interest and had $0.7 million accrued for the payment of interest at August 31, 2009.  Interest
recognized for the three months ended August 31, 2008 was $0.1 million.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states and foreign jurisdictions.  With few exceptions, we are no longer
subject to U.S. federal, state and local, or non−U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years ending before May 31, 2005.  Currently, we are
involved in limited audit activity in certain jurisdictions.  While we believe we have adequately provided for all tax positions under examination, amounts
asserted by taxing authorities could be greater or less than the accrued provision.  We do not anticipate that adjustments, if any, would result in a material
change to our financial position nor do we expect the amount of unrecognized tax benefits or cash payments related to these obligations to significantly
change over the next 12 months.

11. Per Share Data

We compute net income or loss per share in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share (SFAS 128). Under SFAS 128,
basic net income or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
applicable period. Diluted net income or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the sum of the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding plus the weighted average of dilutive shares outstanding during the period. In addition, in periods of net loss, all potentially dilutive
common shares are excluded from our computation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding, as their inclusion would have an anti−dilutive effect on
net loss per share. We use the treasury stock method to calculate the weighted average dilutive shares related to “in−the−money” stock options and warrants,
unvested restricted stock awards and shares issuable under our employee stock purchase plan. The dilutive effect of our senior convertible notes is
calculated based on the average market price of our common stock during the applicable period and the senior convertible notes’ conversion price. The
senior convertible notes are excluded from our computation of diluted earnings per share when the per share conversion price is greater than the average
market price of our common stock during the applicable periods.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended
August 31,

2009 2008
(as adjusted)

Basic net income (loss) per share computation:
Net income (loss) $ 5,977 $ (3,691)
Weighted average common shares − basic 161,112 168,394
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 0.04 $ (0.02)
Diluted net income per share computation:
Net income (loss) $ 5,977 $ (3,691)
Diluted weighted average shares calculation:
Weighted average common shares 161,112 168,394
Net dilutive effect of:
Stock options 1,446 —
Restricted stock awards 1,346 —
ESPP 17 —
Weighted average common shares − diluted 163,921 168,394
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 0.04 $ (0.02)

Potentially dilutive shares of common stock related to share−based payments and warrants are excluded from the diluted net income per share
computations when their exercise prices are greater than the average market price of our common stock during the applicable periods as their inclusion
would be anti−dilutive.

The following table sets forth potentially dilutive weighted average shares which were excluded from our computation of diluted net income
(loss) per share because their inclusion would have been anti−dilutive (in thousands):
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Three Months Ended
August 31,

2009 2008
Stock options 9,862 11,786
Warrants — 19,975
Restricted stock awards 302 1,371
ESPP — 18
Total potentially dilutive shares 10,164 33,150

12. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table summarizes the components of other comprehensive income (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
August 31,

2009 2008
(as adjusted)

Net income (loss) $ 5,977 $ (3,691)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (1) (1) 6
Pension unrealized loss (31) —
Foreign currency translation adjustment 16,010 (26,542)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 15,978 (26,536)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 21,955 $ (30,227)

(1)           The unrealized gain (loss) on investments in the above table are net of taxes (benefit) of less than $(1) and $3 for the comparable three
months ended August 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Total accumulated other comprehensive income and its components for the periods presented were as follows (in thousands):

August 31, May 31,
2009 2009

Foreign currency translation adjustment $ 48,234 $ 32,224
Pension unrealized actuarial gain 2,903 2,934
Unrealized gain on investments (6) (5)
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 51,131 $ 35,153

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal

On May 19, 2009, ePlus, Inc. filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against Lawson Software, Inc.,
Perfect Commerce, Inc., SciQuest, Inc. and Verian Technologies, Inc.  The other three defendants subsequently entered into separate confidential
settlements and have sought dismissal by the court of their parts of the lawsuit. The complaint alleges that Lawson’s supply chain products infringe three
U.S. patents owned by ePlus. ePlus seeks damages in an undisclosed amount, enhancement of those damages, an attorney’s fee award and an injunction
against further infringement. The trial in this case is currently scheduled for February 2010.  We are vigorously defending this case because we believe we
have meritorious defenses, including non−infringement and patent invalidity. However, given the inherent unpredictability of litigation and jury trials, we
cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome of this lawsuit. Because patent litigation is time consuming and costly to defend, we will continue to incur
significant costs defending this case. In addition, in the event of an unfavorable outcome in this matter, it could have a material adverse effect on our future
results of operations or cash flows.

On May 20, 2008, a putative class action lawsuit was filed against us in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York on
behalf of current and former business, systems, and technical consultants. The suit, Cruz, et. al., v. Lawson Software, Inc. et. al., alleges that we failed to
pay overtime wages pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and state law, and alleges violations of state record−keeping requirements. The suit
also alleges certain violations of
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ERISA and unjust enrichment. Relief sought includes back wages, corresponding 401(k) plan credits, liquidated damages, penalties, interest and attorneys’
fees. Given the preliminary nature of the alleged claims and the inherent unpredictability of litigation, we cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome
of any such action. We successfully moved the case from the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York to the District of
Minnesota. The Minnesota Federal District Court has conditionally certified the case under the FLSA as a collective action and granted our motion to
dismiss the two ERISA counts and the state wage and hour claims. The Plaintiffs then moved to amend the complaint to assert Minnesota state FLSA causes
of action, and that motion was granted.  Plaintiffs have now filed a motion for Rule 23 certification to treat the case as a class action, and that motion is
currently pending.

We accumulated information regarding Intentia customer claims and disputes that arose before our acquisition of Intentia in April 2006.  The
original charge to establish the reserve for these claims and disputes recorded in fiscal 2006 and the subsequent adjustment in fiscal 2007 were recorded to
goodwill as part of the purchase accounting related to our acquisition of Intentia.  Adjustments to the reserve recorded in fiscal 2008 and 2009 were
reflected in general and administrative expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations in the applicable periods as the reductions occurred outside
the period in which adjustments to purchase accounting was allowed.   In the first quarter of fiscal 2009, certain of these claims and disputes settled at
amounts lower than anticipated and our estimated reserve requirements were reduced by $1.8 million. The applicable reserve is recorded at present value
and is expected to be consumed through a combination of cash payments, accounts receivable write−offs and free services over the next 12 to 15 months. 
As of August 31, 2009 and May 31, 2009, we had reserves recorded of approximately $1.9 million related to these Intentia disputes that arose before the
acquisition. We expense our defense costs during the period when incurred. If the aggregate settlement costs or judgments exceed the fair value estimate
established as part of the purchase price adjustment, the excess costs would be expensed in the period when incurred.

We are subject to various other legal proceedings and the risk of litigation by employees, customers, suppliers, stockholders or others through
private actions, class actions, administrative proceedings or other litigation. While the outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not
believe that the outcome of any of these legal matters will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows. However, depending on the amount and the timing, an unfavorable resolution of some or all of these matters could materially affect our future results
of operations or cash flows in a particular period.

Indemnification Guarantee Agreements and Employment Agreements

In the normal course of business, we license our software products to customers under end−user license agreements and to certain resellers or
other business partners under business partner agreements.  We also enter into services agreements with customers for the implementation of our software.
We may subcontract these services to our business partners.  These agreements generally include certain provisions for indemnifying our customer or
business partner against losses, expenses and liabilities from damages that may be awarded against them if our software, or the third−party−owned software
we resell, is found to infringe a patent, copyright, trademark or other proprietary right of a third−party.  We have also entered into various employment
agreements with certain executives and other employees which provide for severance payments subject to certain conditions and events.  We believe our
exposure under these various indemnification and employment agreements is minimal and accordingly, we have not accrued any liabilities related to these
agreements as of August 31, 2009.

We have arrangements with certain of our customers whereby we guarantee the products and services purchased will operate materially and
substantially as described in the documentation that we provided.  If necessary, we provide for the estimated cost of product and service warranties based on
specific warranty claims and claim history.

See Note 13, Commitments and Contingencies, in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10−K for our fiscal
year ended May 31, 2009 for additional detail regarding these various agreements.

14. Segment and Geographic Information

We are a global provider of enterprise software, services and support.  We target customers in specific industries as well as the horizontal market
for our strategic human capital management product line. We serve customers in the Americas, EMEA and APAC geographic regions.  We determine our
reportable operating segments in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information
(SFAS 131), which establishes standards for and requires disclosure of certain financial information related to our operating segments and geographic
regions.  Factors used to identify our reportable operating segment(s) include the financial information regularly utilized for evaluation by our chief
operating decision−maker (CODM) in making decisions about how to allocate resources and in assessing our performance.  We have determined that our
CODM, as defined by SFAS 131, is our Chief Executive Officer.
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Segment Information

During fiscal 2009 and prior years, we viewed our operations and managed our business as one reportable segment, the development and
marketing of computer software and related services including consulting, maintenance and customer support. Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010,
we reorganized our operations to provide greater focus on and better serve our targeted vertical markets within each of our product lines.

In fiscal 2009 and prior years, the operations that supported our S3 products and M3 products were under one common leadership organization
and the financial information utilized to evaluate our business operations for fiscal 2009 and prior years was combined for all vertical markets for our
product sales, consulting services and maintenance and customer support. Following our fiscal 2010 strategic realignment, we are now operationally aligned
by industry vertical and our management structure and financial reporting of our operations follow this vertical structure.  Based on our new organizational
structure and related internal financial reporting structure, we have determined that we now have three reportable segments relating to our three industries
groups: S3 Strategic Industries, M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries.  The S3 Strategic Industries and M3 Strategic Industries groups generally
align with our Lawson S3 Enterprise Management System and Lawson M3 Enterprise Management System product lines, respectively.  Our S3 Strategic
Industries and M3 Strategic Industries groups include key vertical industry markets for each of our S3 and M3 product lines, respectively, and related
services and support, which we believe offer the greatest growth potential for Lawson.  The S3 Strategic Industries group targets customers in the healthcare
and public sector industries. The M3 Strategic Industries group targets customers in the equipment service management & rental, food & beverage and
fashion industries.  Our General Industries group includes our services industries customers (S3) and manufacturing & distribution industries customers
(M3) which are in industries not included in our other two Industries Groups.

Within our organization, multiple sets of information are available that reflect various views of our operations including vertical, geographic
and/or functional information.  However, the main financial information provided to and used by our CEO to assist in making operational decisions,
allocating resources and assessing our performance reflects revenues, controllable costs and controllable margin by segment (which are our industries group,
S3 Strategic Industries, M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries).  Segment controllable costs include costs of applicable license fees and other direct
costs: costs of resources dedicated to each industries group, direct general and administrative expenses and allocations related to our professional services
organization.  The resulting segment controllable margin is the financial measure by which each segment and management’s performance is measured. 
Segment controllable margin does not include an allocation of non−dedicated resources that support our entire organization or other corporate
shared−services.  These unallocated expenses relate to our functional areas or competency centers: global sales operation, customer support, primarily all
marketing, primarily all development and product management, and general and administrative functions: executive management, finance, human
resources, legal, facilities and information technology services.  Certain other costs are also excluded from segment controllable margin and are included in
competency center and other unallocated expenses including share−based compensation and pre−merger claims reserve adjustments.  In addition,
restructuring charges and amortization of acquired intangibles are not allocated to our reportable segments. We do not have any intercompany revenue
recorded between our reportable segments.  The accounting policies for all of our reportable segments are the same as those used in our consolidated
financial statements as detailed in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report
on Form 10−K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 and updated herein.

The following table presents financial information for our reportable segments for the periods indicated (in thousands):
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S3 Strategic M3 Strategic General
Three Months Ended Industries Industries Industries Total
August 31, 2009
Segment revenues
License fees $ 11,360 $ 9,104 $ 5,471 $ 25,935
Maintenance services 34,862 17,552 33,016 85,430
Software revenues 46,222 26,656 38,487 111,365
Consulting 19,146 23,122 15,359 57,627
Total segment revenues 65,368 49,778 53,846 168,992
Segment controllable costs 27,044 36,017 19,826 82,887
Segment controllable margin $ 38,324 $ 13,761 $ 34,020 86,105
Unallocated expenses
Competency center, corporate shared−services and other unallocated expenses,

net 65,178
Restructuring 75
Amortization of acquired intangibles 1,880
Total unallocated expenses 67,133
Consolidated − Operating income 18,972
Other income (expense), net (4,230)
Consolidated − Income before income taxes $ 14,742

August 31, 2008 (1)
Segment revenues
License fees $ 8,128 $ 7,873 $ 5,124 $ 21,125
Maintenance services 31,895 20,472 36,742 89,109
Software revenues 40,023 28,345 41,866 110,234
Consulting 23,474 29,984 27,224 80,682
Total segment revenues 63,497 58,329 69,090 190,916
Segment controllable costs 31,927 48,202 35,961 116,090
Segment controllable margin $ 31,570 $ 10,127 $ 33,129 74,826
Unallocated expenses
Competency center, corporate shared−services and other unallocated expenses,

net 66,261
Restructuring (231)
Amortization of acquired intangibles 2,627
Total unallocated expenses 68,657
Consolidated − Operating income 6,169
Other income (expense), net (839)
Consolidated − Income before income taxes $ 5,330

(1)            We have retrospectively adjusted our segment information for fiscal 2009 to reflect our new reportable segments and conform to the current period
presentation.

We do not assess or report our assets or capital expenditures by reportable segment. See Note 6, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, for disclosure of
goodwill by reportable segment.

Geographic Information

The following table presents our revenues summarized by geographic region, based on the location of our customers, for the periods indicated (in
thousands):
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Geographic Region
Three Months Ended Americas APAC EMEA Total
August 31, 2009
License fees $ 17,118 $ 1,656 $ 7,161 $ 25,935
Maintenance services 58,496 2,372 24,562 85,430
Software revenues 75,614 4,028 31,723 111,365
Consulting 30,505 3,405 23,717 57,627
Total revenues $ 106,119 $ 7,433 $ 55,440 $ 168,992

August 31, 2008
License fees $ 11,200 $ 1,331 $ 8,594 $ 21,125
Maintenance services 56,727 3,032 29,350 89,109
Software revenues 67,927 4,363 37,944 110,234
Consulting 36,805 3,327 40,550 80,682
Total revenues $ 104,732 $ 7,690 $ 78,494 $ 190,916

The following table presents our long−lived tangible assets, consisting of property and equipment net of accumulated depreciation, summarized
by geographic region (in thousands):

Geographic Region
Americas APAC EMEA Total

As of August 31, 2009 $ 36,998 $ 4,982 $ 14,334 $ 56,314
As of May 31, 2009 $ 35,381 $ 5,879 $ 14,381 $ 55,641

The following table sets forth revenues and long−lived tangible assets by country for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
August 31,

Revenues (1) 2009 2008
United States $ 103,959 $ 103,049
Sweden 14,108 22,189
All other countries (2) 50,925 65,678
Total revenues $ 168,992 $ 190,916

As of
August 31, May 31,

Long−lived tangible assets 2009 2009
United States $ 36,962 $ 35,339
Sweden 8,935 9,407
Philippines 3,937 4,745
All other countries (2) 6,480 6,150
Total long−lived tangible assets $ 56,314 $ 55,641

(1) Revenues are attributable to countries based on the location of our customers.

(2) No other country reported revenues exceeding 10% of consolidated revenues or long−lived tangible assets exceeding 10% of consolidated
long−lived tangible assets. In those fiscal periods when a country’s revenues or long−lived tangible assets were less than 10% of the consolidated
totals, applicable amounts are included in “All other countries.”

15. Repurchase of Common Shares

Our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program of up to $100.0 million of common stock in November 2006 and on July 10, 2008,
increased the maximum authorized for repurchase under the program to $400.0 million. The share
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repurchases are funded using our existing cash balances and future cash flows and may occur through transactions structured through investment banking
institutions as permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements, open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions and/or other mechanisms.
Our share repurchase program does not have an expiration date and allows us to repurchase shares at our discretion and market conditions influence the
timing of the buybacks and the number of shares repurchased. There can be no assurance as to the amount, timing or repurchase price of future repurchases,
if any, related to the share repurchase program. The program may also be modified, extended or terminated by our Board of Directors at any time. From
inception of the repurchase program through August 31, 2009, we have used $264.8 million to repurchase approximately 31.9 million shares at an average
price of $8.30 per share. The repurchased shares are recorded as treasury stock and result in a reduction to our stockholders equity. The shares will be used
for general corporate purposes. As of August 31, 2009, the maximum dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased under this program was $135.2
million.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we repurchased an aggregate of 0.3 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $5.08 per share
under the share repurchase program.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009 we purchased 11.5 million shares through an accelerated share repurchase transaction (the ASR) that we
entered into with Lehman OTC on July 15, 2008.  The average price per share of the shares purchased under the ASR transaction was $7.93.  Pursuant to
the ASR agreement, Lehman was required to post cash collateral to a segregated brokerage account in our name in an amount equal to the value of the
additional shares, or net cash, due to us if the ASR were terminated as of the current date.  Upon an event of default by Lehman OTC, pursuant to our rights
under the ASR, we issued a notice of default to Lehman OTC on September 24, 2008 and terminated the ASR agreement and requested the distribution of
all $9.1 million of funds held in our segregated brokerage account.  As of August 31, 2009, we continue to seek the transfer of such funds to a new account
in accordance with procedures established by the trustee appointed to oversee the liquidation of Lehman Brothers.  As of the date of this filing we had not
yet received these funds.  We have recorded these funds as restricted cash−current on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of August 31, 2009 and May 31,
2009.

We currently believe that the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy, and its potential impact on subsidiaries of Lehman Holdings, the liquidation of
Lehman Brothers Inc., and the bankruptcy of Lehman OTC, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash
flows. We continue to closely monitor the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy situation, the liquidation of Lehman Brothers Inc., as well as the Lehman OTC
bankruptcy, and our legal rights under our contractual relationships with Lehman OTC.

16. Subsequent Event

On September 30, 2009, we approved a plan to restructure our workforce.  We are making a targeted reduction primarily of consulting positions
in our EMEA region.  These actions are being undertaken as a further refinement of our new vertical organization, including a resizing of our services
business to leverage our partner channel, and in light of current demand for our consulting and implementation services in EMEA. Under this plan, we will
reduce our workforce by approximately 75 employees, or 2.0% percent of our global workforce.  We anticipate that the majority of the actions related to
this plan will be completed by the end of the second quarter of fiscal 2010.  The restructuring action is expected to result in pre−tax charges of
approximately $4.0 million for severance pay and related benefits with the majority of the charges recorded in our second quarter of fiscal 2010. 
Substantially all of this amount will result in future cash expenditures.  We expect that the majority of the severance and related benefits will be paid within
the next 12 months.  Annualized cost and expense savings from these actions are estimated to be approximately $7.0 million.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward−Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q contains forward−looking statements. The forward−looking statements
are made in reliance upon the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“intend,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “project,” “should” and similar expressions are intended to identify “forward−looking statements” within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward−looking statements include, among others, statements about our future performance, the
continuation of historical trends, the sufficiency of our sources of capital for future needs, the effects of acquisitions and the expected impact of recently
issued accounting pronouncements. The forward−looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated in the forward−looking statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, those
discussed in Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors, in our Annual Report on Form 10−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for our fiscal
year ended May 31, 2009.  Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward−looking statements, which reflect management’s opinions
only as of the date hereof. Lawson undertakes no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these forward−looking statements.
Readers should carefully review the risk factors described in our Annual Report on Form 10−K and in other documents we file from time to time with the
SEC including our Quarterly Reports on Form 10−Q.

Management Overview

Lawson Software, Inc. is a global provider of enterprise software.  We provide business application software, consulting and maintenance to
customers primarily in specific services, trade and manufacturing/distribution industries.  We specialize in andtarget specific industries including
equipment service management & rental, fashion, food & beverage, healthcare, manufacturing & distribution, public sector (U.S.), and service industries as
well as the horizontal market for our strategic human capital management product line.  Our software includes enterprise financial management, human
capital management, business intelligence, asset management, enterprise performance management, supply chain management, service management,
manufacturing operations, business project management and industry−tailored applications. Our applications help automate and integrate critical business
processes, which enables our customers to collaborate with their partners, suppliers and employees. We support our customers’ use of our applications
through consulting services which primarily help our customers implement their Lawson applications, and through our maintenance programs that provide
on−going support and product updates for our customers’ continued use of our applications.

Our enterprise software solutions focus on providing competitive advantages and business flexibility to our customers.  Lawson’s solutions fall
within three main product lines and include related maintenance and consulting services.  Our product lines are referred to as Lawson S3 Enterprise
Management System, Lawson M3 Enterprise Management System, and Lawson Strategic Human Capital Management with many of the solutions in each
product line having broad, cross−industry application. Our S3 solutions consist of business applications designed for services oriented industries. Our M3
solutions consist of applications that are geared for manufacturing, distribution and trade businesses who face resource constraints and whose processes are
often complex and industry−specific.  Our Strategic Human Capital Management applications provide solutions for customers to strategically manage their
workforce.

During fiscal 2009 and prior years, we operated as one business segment, the development and marketing of computer software and related
services including consulting, maintenance and customer support. Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we reorganized our operations to provide
greater focus on and better serve our targeted vertical markets. With this strategic organizational change, including a workforce realignment, we determined
that we have three reportable segments that align with our three industries groups: S3 Strategic Industries, M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries.
The S3 Strategic Industries group targets customers in the healthcare and public sector industries. The M3 Strategic Industries group targets customers in the
equipment service management & rental, food & beverage and fashion industries.  Our General Industries group includes our services industries customers
(S3) and manufacturing & distribution industries (M3) customers which are in industries not included in our other two Industries Groups. See Note 14,
Segment and Geographic Information, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10−Q for additional information and
applicable disclosures.

Revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 were $169.0 million, down 11.5% compared to $190.9 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. 
Consulting revenues accounted for the largest decrease in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 as
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compared to the last year’s first quarter, down $23.1 million, or 28.6%, the result of both our maintaining fewer billable consultants and lower bookings for
our consulting and implementation services.  Maintenance services revenues were also down $3.7 million, or 4.1%, year−over−year primarily related to the
impact of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.  These decreases were partially offset by a $4.8 million, or 22.8%, increase in our license fees
revenues which was primarily due to the recognition of a larger amount of deferred license fees revenues in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to
the similar period last year as well as several significant deals signed and recognized in the current quarter. From a segment perspective, revenues in our S3
Strategic Industries group were up $1.9 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to the similar period last year with increased license fees and
maintenance services revenues more than offsetting a decrease in this segment’s consulting revenues.  Our M3 Strategic Industries’ revenues were down
$8.6 million for the quarter as compared to last year primarily as a result of decreased consulting revenues.  First quarter revenues in our General Industries
group decreased $15.2 million as compared to the first quarter last year as a result of a significant decrease in consulting revenues as well as lower
maintenance services revenues. Geographically, the quarter−over−quarter decrease was primarily related to our EMEA region where revenues declined
$23.1 million, or 29.4%.  Our APAC region revenues were down $0.3 million.  These decreases were only somewhat offset by a $1.4 million, or 1.3%,
increase in quarter−over−quarter revenues in our Americas region. The Americas region continues to represent the majority of our total revenues at 62.8%
for the fiscal quarter, up from 54.9% in the first quarter last year. The EMEA region accounted for 32.8% of total revenues in the quarter as compared to
41.1% last year.  The remaining 4.4% of our revenues were generated in our APAC region.

Total gross margin as a percent of revenues for the first quarter increased to 57.2% compared to 50.4% in the first quarter of last year primarily
due to a favorable mix of software revenues as compared to consulting revenues.  In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, software revenues accounted for 65.9%
of our total revenues as compared to 57.7% in the first quarter last year.  We anticipate an improved software revenue mix for full year fiscal 2010. 
Operating expenses decreased by $12.4 million, or 13.8%, from the first quarter of last year primarily related to a decrease in our sales and marketing costs. 
As a percent of revenues, operating expenses improved to 46.0% compared to 47.2% in the first quarter of last year.

A significant portion of our business is in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar, particularly the Swedish Krona (SEK) and the Euro. Our
revenues and operating expenses are affected by fluctuations in applicable foreign currency exchange rates.  During fiscal 2009, mainly the second quarter,
foreign currency exchange rates were extremely volatile and the U.S. Dollar strengthened significantly against most major currencies.  In the first quarter of
fiscal 2010 the U.S. Dollar to SEK exchange rate improved 9.8% as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2009 while the U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate
improved 2.6% over the same period. These fluctuations in the exchange rates affected our first quarter fiscal 2010 results as improvements in the U.S.
Dollar to SEK and Euro exchange rates have the effect of reducing our revenues but also reducing our operating expenses denominated in currencies other
than the U.S. Dollar.

For financial results denominated in a currency other than the U.S. Dollar, we calculate constant currency by converting the prior period financial
results at the exchange rates applicable to current periods. We believe these constant currency comparisons provide additional insight into our business
performance during the applicable reporting periods exclusive of the effects of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, and should be considered in
addition to, and not as a substitute for the actual changes in revenues, expenses, income or other financial measures presented in this Quarterly Report on
Form 10−Q.

The strengthening of the U.S. Dollar during the first quarter of fiscal 2010 had a negative impact on our revenues accounting for approximately
$10.7 million, or 5.3%, of the decline in revenues, as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2009. This primarily affected our EMEA region resulting in a
negative impact on license fees, maintenance services and consulting revenues of 5.4%, 5.0% and 5.2%; respectively, as compared to the first quarter last
year.  Excluding the effect of currency fluctuations, our total revenues for the first quarter were down approximately $11.2 million, or 6.2%, as compared to
fiscal 2009.  On a constant currency basis, license fees and maintenance services revenues increased $5.7 million and $0.7 million, or 28.2% and 0.9%,
respectively, compared to the first quarter of last year while consulting revenues decreased $17.6 million or 23.4%. Together, these resulted in a net
decrease in total revenues during the first quarter of fiscal 2010 of $21.9 million as compared to the similar period last year. The currency fluctuations also
had the effect of decreasing our total costs and operating expenses, as reported in U.S. Dollars, by approximately $13.0 million which when combined with
a decrease in total expenses of $21.8 million on a constant currency basis resulted in a $34.7 million decrease in total expenses for the first quarter of fiscal
2010 as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2009.  Foreign currency exchange rates had a favorable impact on our first quarter net income of
approximately $0.01 per share.

Subsequent to the end of our first quarter, on September 30, 2009, we approved a plan to restructure our workforce relating to a targeted
reduction primarily of consulting positions in our EMEA region.  These actions are being undertaken as a further refinement of our new vertical
organization, including a resizing of our services business to leverage our partner channel, and in light of current demand for our consulting and
implementation services in EMEA. Under this plan, we will

26



Table of Contents

reduce our workforce by approximately 75 employees, or 2.0% percent of our global workforce.  We expect that these actions will result in pre−tax charges
of approximately $4.0 million for severance pay and related benefits with the majority of the charges recorded in our second quarter of fiscal 2010.  We
anticipate that the majority of these actions will be completed by the end of the second quarter of fiscal 2010.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies are described in Part II — Item 7,Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,in our Annual Report on Form 10−K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009.  These policies reflect those areas that require more
significant judgments, and use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of our financial statements and include the following:

• Revenue Recognition
• Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
• Sales Returns and Allowances
• Valuation of Long−Lived and Intangible Assets and Goodwill
• Income Taxes
• Contingencies
• Litigation Reserves
• Share−Based Compensation

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates as disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10−K for our
fiscal year ended May 31, 2009.

Results of Operations

We generated net income of $6.0 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to a net loss of $3.7 million in the first quarter of fiscal
2009.  Net income per diluted share was $0.04 in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 compared to net loss of $0.02 per diluted share in the similar period last
year.

The following table sets forth certain line items in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations as a percentage of total revenues for the
periods indicated, the period−over−period percent actual increase (decrease) and the period−over−period percent increase (decrease) on a constant currency
basis:

27



Table of Contents

Percentage of
Total Revenue

Quarterly Change
Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009

Three Months Ended
August 31, Percent Change

2009 2008 Actual
Constant
Currency

(as adjusted)
Revenues:
License fees 15.3% 11.1% 22.8% 28.2%
Maintenance services 50.6 46.7 (4.1) 0.9
Software revenues 65.9 57.8 1.0 6.1
Consulting 34.1 42.2 (28.6) (23.4)
Total revenues 100.0 100.0 (11.5) (6.2)

Cost of revenues:
Cost of license fees 2.9 2.8 (7.6) (3.2)
Cost of maintenance services 9.2 8.8 (7.8) (0.6)
Cost of software revenues 12.1 11.6 (15.4) (1.2)
Cost of consulting 30.7 38.0 (28.5) (22.3)
Total cost of revenues 42.8 49.6 (23.6) (17.3)

Gross profit 57.2 50.4 0.4 4.2

Operating expenses:
Research and development 12.2 11.5 (5.9) 2.7
Sales and marketing 21.2 24.3 (22.8) (17.8)
General and administrative 11.4 10.1 (0.2) 5.2
Restructuring 0.1 (0.1) *NM *NM
Amortization of acquired intangibles 1.1 1.4 (28.4) (23.1)
Total operating expenses 46.0 47.2 (13.8) (7.9)

Operating income 11.2 3.2 207.5 126.0
Total other income (expense), net (2.5) (0.4) *NM *NM
Income before income taxes 8.7 2.8 176.6 95.0
Provision for income taxes 5.2 4.7 (2.8) (1.1)
Net income 3.5% (1.9)% *NM% *NM%

*  NM Percentage not meaningful

The discussion that follows relating to our results of operations for the comparable three months ended August 31, 2009 and August 31, 2008,
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes and with the information
presented in the above table. This analysis addresses the actual changes in our results of operations for the comparable fiscal quarters. For percentage
changes excluding the impact of foreign currency fluctuations, see the constant currency percentages in the above table.

Revenues

Three Months Ended Quarterly Change
August 31, Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009

(in thousands) 2009 2008 Dollars Percent

Revenues:
License fees $ 25,935 $ 21,125 $ 4,810 22.8%
Maintenance services 85,430 89,109 (3,679) (4.1)
Software revenues 111,365 110,234 1,131 1.0
Consulting 57,627 80,682 (23,055) (28.6)
Total revenues $ 168,992 $ 190,916 $ (21,924) (11.5)%
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The following table sets forth revenues by reportable segment:

Three Months Ended Quarterly Change
August 31, Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009

(in thousands) 2009 2008 Dollars Percent

S3 Strategic Industries:
License fees $ 11,360 $ 8,128 $ 3,232 39.8%
Maintenance services 34,862 31,895 2,967 9.3
Software revenues 46,222 40,023 6,199 15.5
Consulting 19,146 23,474 (4,328) (18.4)
Total S3 revenues $ 65,368 $ 63,497 $ 1,871 2.9%

M3 Strategic Industries:
License fees $ 9,104 $ 7,873 $ 1,231 15.6%
Maintenance services 17,552 20,472 (2,920) (14.3)
Software revenues 26,656 28,345 (1,689) (6.0)
Consulting 23,122 29,984 (6,862) (22.9)
Total M3 revenues $ 49,778 $ 58,329 $ (8,551) (14.7)%

General Industries:
License fees $ 5,471 $ 5,124 $ 347 6.8%
Maintenance services 33,016 36,742 (3,726) (10.1)
Software revenues 38,487 41,866 (3,379) (8.1)
Consulting 15,359 27,224 (11,865) (43.6)
Total GI revenues $ 53,846 $ 69,090 $ (15,244) (22.1)%

Total Revenues.  We generate revenues from licensing software, providing maintenance and support on licensed products and providing
consulting services. We generally utilize written contracts as the means to establish the terms and conditions by which our products, maintenance and
consulting services are sold to our customers. As our maintenance and consulting services are primarily attributable to our licensed products, growth in our
maintenance and consulting services is generally tied to the level of our license contracting activity.

We recognize revenues pursuant to specific and detailed guidelines applicable to the software industry. License fees revenues from end−users are
generally recognized when the software product has been shipped and certain conditions are met. Revenues from customer maintenance and support
contracts are deferred and recognized ratably over the term of the agreements. Revenues from consulting services (including training and implementation
services) are recognized as services are provided to customers. See Part II — Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations− Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates − Revenue Recognition, in our Annual Report on Form 10−K for our fiscal year ended
May 31, 2009, for a more complete description of our revenue recognition policy.

First quarter fiscal 2010 total revenues decreased 11.5% to $169.0 million as compared to $190.9 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. 
Software revenues, consisting of license fees revenues and maintenance services, were up 1.0% to $111.4 million compared to $110.2 million in the first
quarter last year.  The increase included a 22.8% increase in our license fees revenues partially offset by a 4.1% decrease in maintenance services revenues. 
Offsetting this increase in software revenues was a 28.6% decrease in our consulting revenues.

License Fees.  Our license fees primarily consist of fees resulting from products licensed to customers on a perpetual basis. Product license fees
result from a customer’s licensing of a given software product for the first time or with a customer’s licensing of additional users for previously licensed
products.

License fees revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 increased $4.8 million, or 22.8%, compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2009.  License
fees revenues increased in each of our reportable segments with S3 Strategic Industries, M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries up $3.2 million, $1.2
million and $0.3 million; respectively, as compared to the first quarter last year.  The increase in S3 Strategic Industries’ first quarter license fees revenues
was primarily due to continued strength in our healthcare business unit and a significant license transaction in our public sector business unit recorded in the
first quarter of fiscal 2010.  The increase in M3 Strategic Industries’ license fees revenues was primarily
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related to ourequipment service management & rental business unit.  With the completion of customer implementation project milestones in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010,  we currently recognized certain deferred revenues on previously contracted deals.  The increase in license fees revenues was
experienced in our Americas and APAC geographies which were up $5.9 million and $0.3 million, respectively, compared to the first quarter of last year. 
The Americas region continued to benefit from a targeted sales stimulus campaign we offered our existing S3 customer base during the second half of fiscal
2009, primarily our fourth quarter.  This program favorably impacted our healthcare and services industries business units’ revenues in the first quarter of
fiscal 2010 as we recognized revenue previously deferred as all contract terms related to these transactions were completed in the first quarter of fiscal
2010.  Our EMEA region’s license fees revenues were down $1.4 million compared to the similar period last year primarily related to decreased sales of our
M3 solutions in our manufacturing & distribution business unit. The total number of licensing transactions decreased in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 by
82 to 134 as compared to 216 in the first quarter of fiscal 2009.  The number of licensing transactions with new customers decreased to 17 compared to 32
in the first quarter of fiscal year 2009.  In the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we entered into three license transactions between $0.5 million and $1.0 million
compared to nine in the similar quarter last year.  We entered into five licensing transactions greater than $1.0 million in the current quarter compared to one
in the first quarter of fiscal 2009.

Maintenance Services.  Our maintenance services revenues represent the ratable recognition of fees to enroll and renew licensed products in our
maintenance programs. These fees are typically charged annually and are based on the license fees initially paid by our customers. Maintenance services
revenues can fluctuate based on the number and timing of new license contracts, renewal rates and price increases.

Maintenance services revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 decreased $3.7 million to $85.4 million, or 4.1%, compared to our fiscal 2009
first quarter. This was primarily driven by decreases in our M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries segments which were down $2.9 million and $3.7
million, respectively, in the comparable first quarters of fiscal 2010 and 2009.  These decreases were the result of slightly higher cancellation rates which
were primarily offset by maintenance agreements associated with new customers in these segments.  Maintenance services revenues in the S3 Strategic
Industries segment were up $3.0 million as annual maintenance agreement renewals with associated price increases as well as maintenance agreements
associated with new S3 Strategic Industries’ customers more than offset cancellations.  In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, maintenance services revenues
within our EMEA and APAC regions were down $4.8 million and $0.7 million, respectively, as compared to the similar period last year as cancellations
outpaced new customer agreements.  Our Americas region experienced a $1.8 million increase in maintenance services revenues related to net new
maintenance agreements.

Consulting.  Our consulting revenues consist of services related to software installations, software implementations, customized development
and training services for customers who have licensed our products.

Consulting revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 decreased $23.1 million to $57.6 million, or 28.6%, compared to the first quarter of fiscal
2009.  The quarter−over−quarter decrease in consulting revenues was experienced in each of our reportable segments with General Industries reflecting the
largest decrease of $11.9 million followed by M3 Strategic Industries down $6.9  million and S3 Strategic Industries down $4.3 million.  Within our EMEA
and Americas regions, first quarter fiscal 2010 consulting revenues were down $16.8 million and $6.3 million, respectively, as compared to the first quarter
of fiscal 2009.  APAC consulting revenues were relatively flat for the comparable first quarters.  These decreases were the result of a significant reduction in
the number of billable consultants in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009, primarily in our EMEA region, as well as lower bookings for
our consulting and implementation services related to decreased license contracting activity in our current fiscal quarter and the prior year.  Third−party
consulting revenues also decreased in the current quarter compared to the similar period last year, as we leveraged utilization of our direct consulting
resources.  We continue to reduce the size of our consulting staff as part of our strategy to move more implementation services to our partner channel as
well as in response to the lower consulting bookings. Over the past year, we have reduced our number of billable service consultants by over 30% and will
continue to right−size our consulting organization when necessary in light of economic conditions and our software and consulting revenue mix.  On
September 30, 2009, we announced an additional reduction of approximately 75 positions, primarily consulting positions in our EMEA region. See Note 16,
Subsequent Event, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10−Q for more information.

Deferred Revenue.  Certain of our revenues are deferred when all conditions of revenue recognition have not been met. Deferred revenue
represents revenue that is to be recognized in future periods when such conditions have been satisfied related to certain license agreements, maintenance
contracts and certain consulting arrangements as discussed above. We had total deferred revenues of $257.0 million at August 31, 2009 compared to
$292.5 million at May 31, 2009.
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The following table sets forth the components of deferred revenue (in thousands):

August 31, May 31,
2009 2009

License fees $ 46,585 $ 55,667
Maintenance services 196,659 224,115
Consulting 13,765 12,741
Total deferred revenue 257,009 292,523
Less current portion (246,939) (279,041)
Deferred revenue − non−current $ 10,070 $ 13,482

In general, changes in the balance of our deferred revenue are cyclical and primarily driven by the timing of our maintenance services renewal
cycles. Our renewal dates occur in the third and fourth quarters of our fiscal year with revenues being recognized ratably over the applicable service periods.
In addition, the decrease in the August 31, 2009 balance as compared to May 31, 2009 was related to the current recognition of certain deferred license fees
revenues in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 primarily relating to contracts entered into in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 under our targeted sales campaign
offered to our existing S3 customer base.

Cost of Revenues

Three Months Ended Quarterly Change
August 31, Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009

(in thousands) 2009 2008 Dollars Percent

Cost of revenues:
Cost of license fees $ 4,927 $ 5,332 $ (405) (7.6)%
Cost of maintenance services 15,559 16,874 (1,315) (7.8)
Cost of software revenues 20,486 22,206 (1,720) (7.7)
Cost of consulting 51,835 72,447 (20,612) (28.5)
Total cost of revenues $ 72,321 $ 94,653 $ (22,332) (23.6)%

Gross profit:
License fees $ 21,008 $ 15,793 $ 5,215 33.0%
Maintenance services 69,871 72,235 (2,364) (3.3)
Total software gross profit 90,879 88,028 2,851 3.2
Consulting 5,792 8,235 (2,443) (29.7)
Total gross profit $ 96,671 $ 96,263 $ 408 0.4%

Gross margin %:
License fees 81.0% 74.8%
Maintenance services 81.8% 81.1%
Total software gross margin % 81.6% 79.9%
Consulting 10.1% 10.2%
Total gross margin % 57.2% 50.4%

Cost of License Fees.  Cost of license fees includes royalties to third−parties, amortization of acquired software and software delivery expenses.
Our software solutions may include embedded components of third−party vendors for which a fee is paid to the vendor upon the sale of our products. In
addition, we resell third−party products in conjunction with the license of our software solutions, which also results in a fee. The cost of license fees is
higher, as a percentage of revenues, when we resell products of third−party vendors. As a result, license fees gross margins will vary depending on the
proportion of third−party product sales in our revenue mix.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, cost of license fees decreased $0.4 million to $4.9 million, or 7.6%, compared to the first quarter of fiscal
2009. The decrease was primarily due to lower royalty expenses related to the decrease in license fees revenues in our EMEA region. Fiscal 2010 first
quarter license fees gross margin increased to 81.0% up from 74.8% in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 primarily due to a favorable first quarter fiscal 2010
revenue mix which included a lower percentage of third−party revenues as compared to the first quarter last year.
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Cost of Maintenance Services.  Cost of maintenance includes salaries, employee benefits, related travel, third−party maintenance costs
associated with embedded and non−embedded third−party products and the overhead costs of providing support.

Cost of maintenance services for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 decreased $1.3 million to $15.6 million, or 7.8%, compared to the first quarter of
fiscal 2009. The decrease was primarily related to a $0.6 million decrease in third−party costs and a $0.6 million decrease in professional fees.  Maintenance
gross margin for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 was 81.8%, up from 81.1% in the first quarter of fiscal 2009.

Cost of Consulting.  Cost of consulting includes salaries, employee benefits, third−party consulting costs, related travel, and the overhead costs
of providing implementation, installation, training and education services to customers.

Cost of consulting decreased $20.6 million to $51.8 million, or 28.5%, in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 compared to the first quarter of fiscal
2009. This decrease was primarily driven by a $13.1 million decrease in employee related costs due to our significantly lower billable headcount in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to the similar quarter last year, a $4.1 million decrease in third−party costs relating to our lower consulting revenues, a
$2.4 million decrease in billable travel and a $1.3 million decrease related to information technology and other infrastructure costs.  Gross margin on
consulting revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 was relatively flat at 10.1% as compared to 10.2% for the similar period last year.

Operating Expenses

Three Months Ended Quarterly Change
August 31, Fiscal 2010 vs. 2009

(in thousands) 2009 2008 Dollars Percent

Operating expenses:
Research and development $ 20,618 $ 21,918 $ (1,300) (5.9)%
Sales and marketing 35,877 46,491 (10,614) (22.8)
General and administrative 19,249 19,289 (40) (0.2)
Restructuring 75 (231) 306 (132.5)
Amortization of acquired intangibles 1,880 2,627 (747) (28.4)
Total operating expenses $ 77,699 $ 90,094 $ (12,395) (13.8)%

Research and Development.  Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, employee benefits, related overhead costs and
consulting fees associated with product development, testing, quality assurance, documentation, enhancements and upgrades.

For the first quarter of fiscal 2010, research and development decreased $1.3 million to $20.6 million, or 5.9%, compared to the first quarter of
last year.  This decrease was primarily due to a decrease of $1.1 million in employee related costs in the current quarter as compared to the first quarter of
last year as a result of lower headcount.

Sales and Marketing.  Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and incentive compensation, employee benefits, travel and
overhead costs related to our sales and marketing personnel, as well as trade show activities, advertising costs and other costs associated with our
Company’s marketing activities.

Sales and marketing expenses for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 decreased $10.6 million to $35.9 million, or 22.8%, compared to the first quarter
of fiscal 2009. This decrease was primarily the result of a $9.2 million decrease in employee related costs due to lower headcount in the first quarter of fiscal
2010 compared to the similar period of fiscal 2009. Included in this decrease is the impact of the $1.9 million of fourth quarter fiscal 2008 under accrual of
sales incentive compensation in EMEA recorded in fiscal 2009. See Note 1, Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation—First Quarter Fiscal 2009
Results of Operations, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10−Q for more information. In addition, costs incurred for
marketing programs decreased $1.3 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 compared to the similar period of fiscal 2009.  In the first quarter of fiscal
2010, we had over 50 fewer sales account executives, down 25.9% compared to the first quarter last year as we have reduced our sales force over the course
of the past year in response to the challenging economic environment.  We are actively recruiting sales executives and anticipate increasing the level of our
sales force over the remainder of fiscal 2010.
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General and Administrative.  General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, employee benefits and related overhead costs for
administrative employees, as well as legal and accounting expenses, consulting fees and bad debt expense. We deem certain of these items to be
shared−services and accordingly allocate the related expenses to other functional line items within cost of revenues and operating expenses, primarily based
on headcount. These administration allocations have no impact on our overall operating margins for any of the periods presented.

For the first quarter of fiscal 2010, general and administrative expenses were fairly consistent, down less than $0.1 million to $19.2 million, or
0.2%, compared to the $19.3 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2009.  This decrease was primarily due to a $1.5 million decrease in infrastructure and
computer lease costs, $0.6 million decrease related to the impact of foreign currency translations in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 compared to the first
quarter of fiscal 2009, $0.5 million decrease in office supplies and other costs and a net $0.3 million decrease in employee related costs. Offsetting these
decreases was a $1.8 million reduction in our pre−merger litigation reserve recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 with no corresponding amount in the
current quarter, See Note 13, Commitments and Contingencies — Legal, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10−Q for
more information, and a $1.0 million increase in contractor fees in the current quarter as compared to the similar period last year.

Restructuring.  During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we recorded restructuring charges of $0.1 million as compared to restructuring accrual
reversals of $0.2 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The current quarter charge relates to adjustments to the original estimates established in the fiscal
2009 and fiscal 2007 restructuring accruals discussed below.

Fiscal 2009 Restructuring

Fiscal 2009 Q2.  On November 18, 2008, we announced the implementation of cost reduction measures in light of the uncertainty in global
economic conditions and in light of other operating margin improvement initiatives. These cost reduction initiatives included a restructuring plan which
called for the reduction of approximately 200 employees throughout our global workforce and the closing of one leased facility. This reduction represented
approximately 5% of our global workforce and affected all functional areas of our operations. We recorded the majority of the restructuring expenses with a
pre−tax charge of approximately $7.9 million in the second quarter of fiscal 2009, including $6.1 million for severance and related benefits and $1.8 million
for the exit of the leased facility.  We took additional actions under the plan during the third quarter, including the reduction of 84 employees, primarily in
our services organization, representing approximately 2% of our global workforce. We exited one additional leased facility under the plan during the third
quarter. These actions resulted in an additional pre−tax charge of approximately $3.4 million recorded in the third quarter of fiscal 2009 including
$2.8 million for severance and related benefits and $0.6 million for lease termination fees incurred for the exit of the additional leased facility.  We do not
anticipate taking any significant additional charges related to this plan in future periods. Actions relating to severance were substantially completed by
February 28, 2009, with related cash payments expected to continue through December 2009. Payments related to the exited facilities are expected to
continue through November 2011.

Fiscal 2009 Q4.  On May 18, 2009, we initiated a plan to restructure our workforce. At that time we began to prepare for a realignment of our
organizational structure to provide greater focus on our targeted vertical markets. The restructuring involved the reduction of certain resources outside our
targeted markets while further investing in resources that will support these markets, elimination of certain positions due to operational efficiencies and
lowering costs overall in light of the continued weakness in global business conditions. Under this plan, we will reduce our workforce by approximately 150
employees, or 4% of our global workforce, and consolidate space in certain of our leased facilities related to our international operations. Notification to
employees affected by the plan began on May 18, 2009 and personnel departures are expected to be completed by the end of our third quarter of fiscal 2010.
The plan resulted in pre−tax charges of approximately $5.3 million for severance and related benefits and the consolidation of leased facilities resulted in
pre−tax charges of approximately $3.8 million which we recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009.  We expect the majority of the severance and related
benefits to be paid within the next 12 months while the leased facilities costs will be paid through December 2011.

In relation to all restructuring actions in fiscal 2009, we made cash payments of $2.5 million relating to severance and related benefits and
$0.9 million related to the exited facilities.  In the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we recorded net adjustments to the accrual of approximately $0.2 million
including additional expenses accrued related to exited leased facilities net of a change to accrued severance and related benefits due to a reduction in the
number of affected employees.  As of August 31, 2009, we had an accrual of $9.3 million; $4.0 million for severance and related benefits and $5.3 million
for the estimated fair value of our liability for the exited facilities.  As of May 31, 2009, the accrual totaled $12.0 million: $6.5 million for severance and
related benefits and $5.5 million for the exited facilities.
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Fiscal 2007 Restructuring

On February 28, 2007,we completed a roadmap to improve our productivity by enhancing global sourcing capabilities and resources. This
roadmap called for therebalancing of our resources between various locations primarily in the U.S., Europe and our global support center in the Philippines
and resulted in the reduction of approximately 250 employees primarily in our U.S. and European operations over the course of fiscal 2008 and the first
quarter of fiscal 2009. This reduction included employees working in all areas of the Company, predominantly in consulting and research and development.
In conjunction withthis roadmapwe recorded a charge of $11.9 million. As of May 31, 2009, we had an accrual of $0.8 million for severance and related
benefits. In the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we paid severance and related benefits of $0.1 million. We recorded $0.1 million in adjustments to the accrual
during the first quarter of fiscal 2010. The ending accrual balance at August 31, 2009 was approximately $0.7 million. Actions relating to severance were
completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2009; however we expect related cash payments to continue through February 2010.

Fiscal 2006 Restructuring

On April 26, 2006, in conjunction with the business combination with Intentia International AB (Intentia), we approved a plan designed to
eliminate employee redundancies in both Intentia and Legacy Lawson.

Fiscal 2006 Legacy Lawson.  The plan for legacy Lawson included the reduction of approximately 60 employees in the U.S. and U.K. and the
exit of or reduction in space for leases in certain facilities. The reduction included employees who worked in operations, marketing, sales, research and
development, maintenance and consulting. As of May 31, 2009, we had an accrual of $1.5 million for the exit or reduction of leased facilities. For the first
quarter of fiscal 2010, we made cash payments of $0.1 million related to exited facilities. The ending accrual balance at August 31, 2009 was $1.4 million
for the exit or reduction of leased facilities. Actions relating to severance were completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. We expect cash payments
related to exited facilities to continue through July 2011.

Fiscal 2006 Intentia.  The plan for Intentia included the reduction of approximately 125 employees in the EMEA and APAC regions and the exit
of or reduction in leased space. The reduction of employees included employees who worked in all functional areas of the Company. As of May 31, 2009,
we had an accrual of $1.5 million for the exit or reduction of leased facilities. We made cash payments of $0.1 million related to exited facilities in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010. In the second quarter of fiscal 2009, we made a $1.6 million adjustment to the accrual for lease exit costs to reflect additional
sublease income not included in the original lease restructuring plan. Pursuant to the provision of EITF 95−3, Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with
a Purchase Business Combination, this adjustment has been recorded as a reduction of goodwill. See Note 6, Goodwill and Intangible Assets. The ending
balance as of August 31, 2009 was $1.5 million related to the accrual for the exit or reduction of leased space. Actions relating to severance were completed
in the third quarter of fiscal 2008. We expect cash payments related to exited facilities or reduced space to continue through June 2012.

As a result of our restructuring plans and the realignment of our workforce, we have experienced cost savings from the lower facility expenses
and reduced headcount and expect these savings to continue.

Amortization of Acquired Intangibles.  Amortization of acquired intangibles primarily relates to the on−going amortization of intangibles
acquired in the Intentia merger as well as other acquisitions. For the first quarter of fiscal 2010, amortization decreased $0.7 million to $1.9 million, or
28.4%, as compared to $2.6 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. This decrease was primarily due to the amortization of certain intangible assets on an
accelerated basis resulting in a higher rate of amortization in fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2010.

Other Income (Expenses), net

Total other income (expense), net, consisting of interest income earned from cash, marketable securities and other investments, interest expense,
and other associated costs, was net expense of $4.2 million and $0.8 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 and 2009, respectively. The $3.4 million
increase in net expense was primarily due to a $2.7 million decrease in interest income as we had significantly lower average investment balances and lower
yields in the current period as compared to the same period last year.  Our investments in auction rate securities were sold in the first quarter of fiscal 2009
and our investments in marketable securities also decreased as we have transitioned our investments to cash and cash equivalents, primarily money market
funds.  As a result, we have experienced lower yields in the current quarter than in the comparable quarter last year.  Interest expense also increased quarter
over quarter by approximately $0.5 million primarily due to increased interest expense related to our capital leases. The increase in interest expense also
includes the impact of our adoption of FSP APB 14−1 in the first quarter of fiscal 2010.  This required us to record additional non−cash interest of
approximately $2.1 million in the current quarter and retrospectively includes $2.0 million in the first quarter of last year.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Our quarterly tax expense is measured using an estimated annual effective tax rate for the period.  For the three months ended August 31, 2009,
our estimated annual global effective tax rate was 39.1% after considering those entities for which no tax benefit from operating losses is expected to occur
during the year as a result of such entities requiring a full valuation allowance against current year losses.  We estimate our annual effective tax rate on a
quarterly basis and make any necessary changes to adjust the rate for the applicable year−to−date period based upon the annual estimate. The estimated
annual tax rate may fluctuate due to changes in forecasted annual operating income, changes in the jurisdictional mix of the forecasted annual operating
income, positive or negative changes to the valuation allowance for net deferred tax assets, changes to actual or forecasted permanent book to tax
differences, impacts from future tax settlements with state, federal or foreign tax authorities or impacts from enacted tax law changes.  We identify items
which are unusual and non−recurring in nature and treat these as discrete events. The tax effect of discrete items is booked entirely in the quarter in which
the discrete event occurs.

Our income tax expense for the three months ended August 31, 2009 was $8.8 million.  This resulted in an overall effective tax rate of 59.5% for
the first quarter of fiscal 2010.  The rate for the current quarter was unfavorably impacted by 5.4% for unbenefitted foreign losses and by 4.2% for return to
provision true−ups.  In addition, the rate for the current quarter was unfavorably impacted by 11.7% for additional income tax provision recorded in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010 that should have been recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009.  For the three months ended August 31, 2008, our income tax
expense was $9.0 million which resulted in an overall effective tax rate for the first quarter of fiscal 2009 of 169.2%. The decrease in the overall effective
tax rate for the three months ended August 31, 2009 as compared to August 31, 2008 primarily related to increased profitability in jurisdictions where we
previously had foreign losses for which no tax benefit was recognized.

As of August 31, 2009, we have recorded a liability of approximately $7.9 million for unrecognized tax benefits related to the uncertain tax
positions, all of which would affect earnings and the effective tax rate, if recognized.  We recognize interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits and
penalties, if incurred, as a component of our income tax expense.  During the three months ended August 31, 2009 we recognized approximately $0.1
million in interest and had $0.7 million accrued for the payment of interest at August 31, 2009.  Interest recognized for the three months ended August 31,
2008 was $0.1 million.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states and foreign jurisdictions.  With few exceptions, we are no longer
subject to U.S. federal, state and local, or non−U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years ending before May 31, 2005.  Currently, we are
involved in limited audit activity in certain jurisdictions.  While we believe we have adequately provided for all tax positions under examination, amounts
asserted by taxing authorities could be greater or less than the accrued provision.  We do not anticipate that adjustments, if any, would result in a material
change to our financial position nor do we expect the amount of unrecognized tax benefits or cash payments related to these obligations to significantly
change over the next 12 months.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Three Months Ended
August 31,

Cash Flow (in thousands) 2009 2008 % Change
(as adjusted)

Cash used in operating activities $ (20,542) $ (14,577) 40.9%
Cash (used in) provided by investing activities $ (4,635) $ 43,149 *NM
Cash used in financing activities $ (411) $ (98,193) (99.6)%

As of
August 31, May 31,

Capital Resources (in thousands) 2009 2009 % Change

Working capital $ 226,712 $ 213,997 5.9%
Cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and short−term

investments $ 391,302 $ 414,815 (5.7)%

*NM Percentage not meaningful
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As of August 31, 2009, we had $391.3 million in cash, cash equivalents and $226.7 million in working capital. Our most significant source of
operating cash flows is derived from license fees, maintenance services and consulting fees related to services provided to our customers. Days sales
outstanding (DSO), which is calculated on net receivables at period−end divided by revenue for the quarter times 90 days in the quarter, was 64 and 74 as of
August 31, 2009 and May 31, 2009; respectively. The decrease in DSO was due to the reduction in our accounts receivable balance, primarily related to
collection of annual maintenance services billings, which more than offset the effect of our lower revenues in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to
the similar period last year. Our primary uses of cash from operating activities are for employee costs, third−party costs for licenses and services, and
facilities.

We believe that cash flows from operations, together with our cash and cash equivalents, will be sufficient to meet our cash requirements for
working capital, capital expenditures, restructuring activities, investments and share repurchases for the foreseeable future. As part of our business strategy,
we may use cash to acquire companies or products from time−to−time to enhance our product lines, which could have a material effect on our capital
resources.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 was $20.5 million. Uses of cash included $46.2 million in working capital. 
The cash uses for working capital purposes included a $37.2  million decrease in our deferred revenue primarily related to the recognition of maintenance
services revenues over the applicable term of these agreements, $35.9 million decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities; primarily related to a
reduction in accrued incentive compensation, a reduction to accrued paid time off relating to usage during the first quarter of fiscal 2010 as well as a
reduction in accrued severance due to payments made related to our fiscal 2009 restructuring actions; a $5.9 million decrease in accounts payable and $11.5
million related to a change in net income taxes payable/receivable. These working capital uses of cash were partially offset by working capital sources of
cash including a $32.4 million decrease in accounts receivable as we collected customer accounts and maintenance services billings including significant
amounts billed during the second half of fiscal 2009, and an $11.9 million decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets. The working capital uses of cash
were also offset by our net income of $6.0 million which included non−cash charges of $10.0 million for depreciation and amortization, $2.6 million related
to stock−based compensation, a $1.6 million provision for estimated warranty costs and doubtful accounts, $3.2 million related to deferred income taxes
and $2.4 million in amortization of debt issuance costs and the debt discount related to our senior convertible notes.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used by investing activities was $4.6 million for the three months ended August 31, 2009.  The primary use of cash was $4.4 million
used to purchase property and equipment primarily related to continued investments in our global information technology and business system infrastructure
as well as $0.3 million increase in restricted cash.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used for financing activities was $0.4 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2010. Financing activities for the period were primarily
related to $1.3 million used to repurchase shares of our common stock pursuant to our Board authorized share repurchase program and $1.0 million used to
make payments on our long−term debt and capital lease obligations.  These uses of cash were somewhat offset by $1.7 million in proceeds from the exercise
of stock options and the issuance of shares of our common stock under our ESPP.

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes

For the three months ended August 31, 2009, changes in foreign currency exchange rates resulted in a $2.1 million increase in our cash and cash
equivalents. Exchange rate changes decreased our cash and cash equivalents by $5.1 million during the three months ended August 31, 2008.

Repurchase of common shares

Our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program of up to $100.0 million of common stock in November 2006, and on July 10, 2008,
increased the maximum authorized for repurchase under the program to $400.0 million.  The share repurchases are funded using our existing cash balances
and future cash flows and may occur through transactions structured through investment banking institutions as permitted by securities laws and other legal
requirements, open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions and/or other mechanisms. Our share repurchase program allows us
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to repurchase shares at our discretion and market conditions influence the timing of the buybacks and the number of shares repurchased. There can be no
assurance as to the amount, timing or repurchase price of future repurchases, if any, related to the share repurchase program.  The program may also be
modified, extended or terminated by our Board of Directors at any time.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we repurchased an aggregate of 0.3 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $5.08 per share
under the share repurchase program.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009 we purchased 11.5 million shares through an accelerated share repurchase transaction (the ASR) that we
entered into with Lehman OTC on July 15, 2008.  The average price per share of the shares purchased under the ASR transaction was $7.93. See Note 15,
Repurchase of Common Shares,in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10−Q for additional information.

From inception of the repurchase program through August 31, 2009, we have used $264.8 million to repurchase 31.9 million shares at an average
price of $8.30 per share. The repurchased shares are recorded as treasury stock and result in a reduction to our stockholders equity. The shares will be used
for general corporate purposes. As of August 31, 2009, the maximum dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased under this program was $135.2
million.

Credit Facilities

We have an uncommitted credit facility that consists of a guarantee line with Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken (SEB) in the amount of $4.2
million (30.0 million SEK). The facility is collateralized by a corporate letter of guarantee by Lawson Software, Inc. As of August 31, 2009, an insignificant
amount was outstanding under the guarantee line and approximately $4.2 million was potentially available under the guarantee line.

Senior Convertible Notes

In April 2007, we issued $240.0 million of senior convertible notes with net proceeds, after expenses, of approximately $233.5 million. The notes
mature on April 15, 2012. The notes bear interest at a rate of 2.5% per annum payable semi−annually in arrears, on April 15 and October 15 of each year,
beginning October 15, 2007. The notes do not contain any restrictive financial covenants. The notes are convertible, at the holder’s option, into cash and, if
applicable, shares of our common stock based on an initial conversion rate of 83.2293 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of notes, which
is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $12.02 per share (which reflects a 35.0% conversion premium based on the closing sale price of
$8.90 per share of Lawson common stock as reported by NASDAQ on April 17, 2007). At the issuance of these notes, we simultaneously entered into
separate agreements to purchase call options and sell warrants which are referred to below as “aconvertible note hedge transaction and a warrant
transaction.” In connection with the issuance of the notes, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers of the notes. On August
16, 2007, we filed the shelf registration statement, which became effective on that date. See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies − Recent
Accounting Pronouncements, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10−Q for additional information relating to our
accounting for these notes.

We had certain business relationships with Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc. (Lehman OTC), including a convertible note hedge
transaction and a warrant transaction both entered into as part of the issuance of our senior convertible notes and an accelerated share repurchase transaction
discussed above. The bankruptcy filings of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. (Lehman Holdings) on September 15, 2008, as guarantor under the convertible
note hedge transaction, and the bankruptcy filing by Lehman OTC onOctober 3, 2008,were events of default under the hedge transaction and warrant
agreements. As a result of these defaults, we exercised our rights to terminate both the convertible note hedge transaction and the warrant transaction on
October 10, 2008.  Accordingly, for financial reporting purposes, we recorded the estimated fair value of the related hedge transaction asset and the warrant
liability during the second quarter of fiscal 2009 resulting in a decrease in our stockholders’ equity equal to the net amount of the recorded asset and
liability. As of August 31, 2009, our claim against Lehman Holdings and Lehman OTC and Lehman Holdings’ and Lehman OTC’s claim against us had not
been settled.

On June 4, 2009, counsel for Lehman Holdings and Lehman OTC demanded payment from us of the termination−date fair value of the warrant,
asserted that in the contracts we have waived the right to setoff against the amounts owed to us under the hedge transaction and claimed we violated the
bankruptcy stay in asserting setoff rights. We have refused payment and contend that the contracts and the U.S. Bankruptcy Code give us legal rights in this
dispute.

The terms of the senior convertible notes and the rights of note holders are not affected by the status of Lehman Holdings or Lehman OTC or by
any termination of the convertible note hedge transaction or warrant transaction.
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Restricted Cash

We had $11.3 million held as restricted cash as of August 31, 2009 of which approximately $9.3 million and $2.1 million have been classified as
current and non−current assets, respectively, on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The current portion relates primarily to the $9.1 million held
in our segregated brokerage account at Lehman OTC. See Note 15,Repurchase of Common Shares, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements of this Form 10−Q for additional information. The remainder of the restricted cash balance relates to various collateral arrangements related to
our property leases worldwide.

Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

As disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10−K for our fiscal year ended May 31, 2009, total contractual obligations at May 31, 2009 were
$355.8 million not including an estimated FIN 48 impact. The total liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 at August 31, 2009 was $7.9 million.
We do not expect the amount of unrecognized tax benefits or cash payments related to these obligations to significantly change over the next 12 months. 
See Note 10, Income Taxes, in Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q, for further discussion.

Off−Balance−Sheet Arrangements

As of May 31, 2009, we did not have any off−balance−sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of SEC Regulation S−K. We do not
use off−balance−sheet arrangements with unconsolidated entities, related parties or other forms of off−balance−sheet arrangements such as research and
development arrangements. Accordingly, our liquidity and capital resources are not subject to off−balance−sheet risks from unconsolidated entities.

We have entered into operating leases for most of our U.S. and international sales and support offices and certain equipment in the normal course
of business. These arrangements are often referred to as a form of off−balance−sheet financing. As of August 31, 2009, we leased facilities and certain
equipment under non−cancelable operating leases expiring between 2009 and 2018. Rent expense under operating leases for the first quarter of fiscal 2010
and fiscal 2009 was $6.7 million and $7.5 million, respectively.

Foreign Currency

We manage foreign currency market risk, from time to time, using forward contracts to offset the risk associated with the effects of certain
foreign currency exposures. Increases or decreases in our foreign currency exposures are expected to be offset by gains or losses on forward contracts. This
is expected to mitigate the possibility of significant foreign currency transaction gains or losses in future periods. Our foreign currency exposures are
primarily related to non−functional currency intercompany loans and advances between our international subsidiaries as well as other balance sheet
accounts, particularly accounts receivable, accounts payable and certain accrual accounts.

We do not use forward contracts for trading purposes. Our foreign currency forward contracts are generally short term in nature, maturing within
90 days or less. We mark to market all contracts at the end of each reporting period and unrealized gains and losses are included in our Consolidated
Statement of Operations for that period. Our ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to currency fluctuations will depend on the currency exchange rates
and other factors in effect as the contracts mature. The net fair value of our foreign currency forward contracts was a net asset of $0.6 million and a net
liability of $0.5 million as of August 31, 2009 and May 31, 2009 and was included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and other current liabilities,
respectively, on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 8, Fair Value Measurements, for more detail. For the comparable three month
periods ended August 31, 2009 and 2008, we recorded net realized and unrealized losses related to foreign currency forward contracts of $4.3 million and
$2.8 million in net gains, respectively. All gains and losses from foreign currency forward contracts have been classified as general and administrative
expense in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10−Q for
information regarding recently issued accounting pronouncements that may impact our financial statements.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10−K for our fiscal year ended May 31, 2009, our major market risk exposure relates to adverse
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and adverse fluctuations in interest rates with respect to our senior convertible notes. We believe our exposure
associated with these market risks has not changed materially since May 31, 2009.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established and maintained disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
our reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms
and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As required by Rule 13a−15(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, we conducted
an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q. Based on this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of August 31,
2009.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective
can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation and may not prevent or detect misstatements.  In
addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a−15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act) during
the quarter ended August 31, 2009 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On May 19, 2009, ePlus, Inc. filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against Lawson Software, Inc.,
Perfect Commerce, Inc., SciQuest, Inc. and Verian Technologies, Inc.  The other three defendants subsequently entered into separate confidential
settlements and have sought dismissal by the court of their parts of the lawsuit. The complaint alleges that Lawson’s supply chain products infringe three
U.S. patents owned by ePlus. ePlus seeks damages in an undisclosed amount, enhancement of those damages, an attorney’s fee award and an injunction
against further infringement. The trial in this case is currently scheduled for February 2010.  We are vigorously defending this case because we believe we
have meritorious defenses, including non−infringement and patent invalidity. However, given the inherent unpredictability of litigation and jury trials, we
cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome of this lawsuit. Because patent litigation is time consuming and costly to defend, we will continue to incur
significant costs defending this case. In addition, in the event of an unfavorable outcome in this matter, it could have a material adverse effect on our future
results of operations or cash flows.

On May 20, 2008, a putative class action lawsuit was filed against us in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York on
behalf of current and former business, systems, and technical consultants. The suit, Cruz, et. al., v. Lawson Software, Inc. et. al., alleges that we failed to
pay overtime wages pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and state law, and alleges violations of state record−keeping requirements. The suit
also alleges certain violations of ERISA and unjust enrichment. Relief sought includes back wages, corresponding 401(k) plan credits, liquidated damages,
penalties, interest and attorneys’ fees. Given the preliminary nature of the alleged claims and the inherent unpredictability of litigation, we cannot at this
time estimate the possible outcome of any such action. We successfully moved the case from the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York to the District of Minnesota. The Minnesota Federal District Court has conditionally certified the case under the FLSA as a collective action and
granted our motion to dismiss the two ERISA counts and the state wage and hour claims. The Plaintiffs then moved to amend the complaint to assert
Minnesota state FLSA causes of action, and that motion was granted.  Plaintiffs have now filed a motion for Rule 23 certification to treat the case as a class
action, and that motion is currently pending.
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We are subject to various other legal proceedings and the risk of litigation by employees, customers, suppliers, stockholders or others through
private actions, class actions, administrative proceedings or other litigation. While the outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not
believe that the outcome of any one of these legal matters will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows. However, depending on the amount and the timing, an unfavorable resolution of some or all of these matters could materially affect our future
results of operations or cash flows in a particular period.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We documented our risk factors in Item 1A of Part I of our Annual Report on Form 10−K for our fiscal year ended May 31, 2009. There have
been no material changes to our risk factors since the filing of that report.  The risk factors detailed in our Annual Report on Form 10−K could materially
harm our business, operating results and financial condition and/or negatively affect our stock price. Additional factors and uncertainties not currently
known to us or that we currently consider immaterial could also harm our business, operating results and financial condition.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

(a) Not applicable

(b) Not applicable

(c) Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

The following table summarizes repurchases of our common stock for the three months ended August 31, 2009:

Period
Total Number of

Shares

Average
Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs

Maximum Dollar Value
of Shares that May Yet
Be Purchased Under the
Plans or Programs (1)

June 1 − 30, 2009 74,524 $ 5.08 74,524 $ 136,118,763
July 1 − 31, 2009 178,245 $ 5.08 178,245 $ 135,213,279
August 1 − 31, 2009 — $ — — $ 135,213,279
Total first quarter fiscal 2010 252,769 $ 5.08 252,769

(1) In November 2006, our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase of up to $100.0 million of common stock. The Board of Directors increased this
maximum to $200.0 million in April 2007 and to $400.0 million on July 10, 2008.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

See Index to Exhibits on page 42 of this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: September 30, 2009

LAWSON SOFTWARE, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERT A. SCHRIESHEIM
Robert A. Schriesheim
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

By: /s/ STEFAN B. SCHULZ
Stefan B. Schulz
Senior Vice President of Finance
(principal accounting officer)
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Exhibit Index

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENTS
10.1 Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated August 5, 2009, with Harry Debes.

10.2 Master Services Agreement, dated September 25, 2009, between Symphony Service Corp. and Lawson Software Americas, Inc.

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act− Harry Debes.

31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act− Robert A. Schreisheim.

32.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act− Harry Debes.

32.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act− Robert A. Schreisheim.
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Addendum
To

Employment Agreement

This Addendum is effective August 5, 2009 (“Addendum”) and modifies the Employment Agreement, as amended (“Agreement”) entered into
effective June 2, 2005 between Lawson Software, Inc., a Delaware corporation (now known as Lawson Software Americas, Inc.) (“Company”) and Harry
Debes (“Employee”), pursuant to Section 7.7 of the Agreement.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Addendum have the same respective
meaning as defined in the Agreement.  The sections of the Agreement that are not expressly modified by this Addendum shall remain in effect pursuant to
their terms.

Section 3.7 of the Agreement, as amended by Addendum effective October 5, 2005, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following new
Section 3.7:

3.7           Sale of Denver Residence.  The Company previously requested Employee to relocate from Denver, Colorado to St. Paul Minnesota, the
location of the Company’s principal offices.  If Employee sells his Denver residence while employed by the Company, and the net sale price of his Denver
residence (after deducting real estate commissions and other closing costs payable by Employee as seller) is less than the current listing price (as of August,
2009) of Employee’s Denver residence (such difference is referred to herein as the “Loss Amount”) then the Company will reimburse to Employee (as
taxable income) the following portions of the Loss Amount:  (a) 100% of the Loss Amount up to the first $100,000 and (b) 50% of the Loss Amount that is
greater than $100,000, up to a maximum aggregate reimbursement of $200,000.  The following chart illustrates this calculation for the following respective
Loss Amounts:

Loss Amount Amount Reimbursed by Company
$100,000 $100,000
$150,000 $125,000
$200,000 $150,000
$300,000 or more $200,000 maximum

This Addendum may be signed in counterpart and by fax or email pdf, and is effective as of August 5, 2009, the date of which this Addendum
was approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

Lawson Software, Inc. Lawson Software Americas, Inc.

By   /s/ David R. Hubers By /s/ Kristin Trecker
  David R. Hubers, Title SVP − Human Resources
  Compensation Committee Chair

/s/ Harry Debes
Harry Debes



Exhibit 10.2

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN

SYMPHONY SERVICE CORP. AND LAWSON SOFTWARE AMERICAS, INC.

This Master Service Agreement constitutes the agreement (the “Agreement”) between Symphony Service Corp., a Delaware corporation with offices
located at 2475 Hanover Street, Palo Alto, CA 94304 (“Symphony”) and Lawson Software Americas, Inc., a Delaware corporation with offices located at
380 St. Peter Street, St. Paul, MN 55102 (“Client”), entered into as of September 25, 2009 (the “Effective Date”) pursuant to which Symphony will render
commercial software product development and other technology consulting services to Client as set forth below.

WHEREAS, Client and Symphony intend that Symphony shall provide commercial software product development and other technology consulting
services for Client based on Client’s requests in consideration referred to herein;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recital and the terms, conditions, and mutual covenants set forth herein, the parties, intending to be
legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS. For the purpose of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply and any term not defined in this Section 1 shall have the
meaning as otherwise defined herein.

1.1.    “Actual Resource Level” means the total number of Resources providing Services hereunder at any given time during the Term.

1.2.    “Affiliate” means an entity directly or indirectly controlled by, under common control with, or controlling a party to this Agreement.  An Affiliate of
either party shall be deemed a Third Party under this Agreement.

1.3.    “Agreement” shall have the meaning as provided in the preamble above and shall include Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference.

1.4.    “Client Onsite Location” means a Client development location where Client has regular and ongoing development staff.

1.5.    “Client Products” means all software and hardware products that Client either owns or licenses or otherwise obtains from Third Parties, along with
any and all user documentation, technical information and any module, specification, system, instruction, program or other proprietary materials, which
Client either delivers to Symphony or to which Client provides Symphony access.

1.6.    “Core Resource(s)” means the minimum number of Resources invoiced to Client at all times during the Term of this Agreement.

1.7.    “Core Resource Level” means the number of Core Resources as set forth in the applicable Statement of Work.

1.8.    “Expenses” means those expenses and costs associated with performance of the Services (as defined below) including, but not limited to, those
referred to in Section 9 of this Agreement.

1.9.    “GOC” means a Symphony global operations center staffed and operated by Symphony or its Affiliates at a facility designated by Symphony in its
sole discretion for the purposes of rendering the Services under this Agreement.

1.10.    “Intellectual Property” means patent rights (including patent applications and disclosures), copyrights, trade secrets, know−how and any other
intellectual property rights recognized in any country or jurisdiction in the world, including without limitation all applications therefor and all registrations
thereof.

1.11.    “Resource(s)” means all Resources providing Services hereunder including but not limited to the Core Resources.

1.12.    “Offshore Resource(s)” means Resources performing Services at the GOC.

1.13.    “Onsite Resource(s)” means Resources providing Services hereunder at a location other than the GOC for a period of thirty (30) days or more.

1.14.    “Personal Data” means any information relating to a natural person who is or can be identified, directly or indirectly, by reference to an
identification number or to one or more factors specific to him or her.

1.15.    “Resource(s)” means all employees or consultants of Symphony and/or any Affiliate thereof, performing Services hereunder.

1.16.    “Resource Category (ies)” means the different categories of Resources listed in the applicable Statement of Work.

1.17.    “Services” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1 below.

SYMPHONY CONFIDENTIAL Commercial Software Solutions Group
DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE
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1.18.        “Third Party (ies)” means any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust, business trust, association, joint stock
company, joint venture, pool, syndicate, sole proprietorship, unincorporated organization, or any other form of entity not specifically listed herein, that is
not a party to this Agreement.

2. AGREEMENT SCOPE AND STRUCTURE

2.1.          Services. Symphony shall provide commercial software development and/or information technology related services to the Client as jointly
determined by the parties per the terms set forth herein and as defined in a Statement of Work (defined in Section 2.2 below) (the “Services”).

2.2.          Statement of Work. Symphony shall perform the Services pursuant to one or more mutually agreed upon statement of work (each a “Statement of
Work” or “SOW”). Statements of Work shall become effective only after being executed by both parties, and shall automatically be construed to
incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2.3.          Delivery of Services.  Symphony will deliver the Services under this Agreement to Client electronically through means mutually agreed upon with
Client, and Client shall provide access to the relevant network(s) to Symphony, its Affiliates and Resources for this purpose. The GOC will be named the
Lawson Software Global Operations Center. The GOC shall be equipped with such systems and other requirements which Symphony deems reasonable
and requisite for the purposes of providing the Services under this Agreement. Certain Services may also be performed at Client Onsite Locations as
contemplated under this Agreement upon mutual agreement of the parties.  The Services shall be performed exclusively for Client and shall not be engaged
for any other purpose whatsoever without the prior written consent of a duly authorized officer of Symphony.  Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Client shall not offer the Services to any Third Party in any manner whatsoever, whether as a service provider, business process outsourcer,
service bureau or otherwise, nor access the GOC, either remotely or in person, without first complying with all Symphony processes and procedures and
shall not provide any Third Party with access to the GOC without a duly authorized Symphony representative’s prior written consent.

2.4.          Location of Services.

2.4.1. Offshore. Symphony shall perform the Services at the GOC, and Client shall receive the Services at its location(s) outside India and shall utilize the Services
outside India.

2.4.2. Onsite. Certain Services may be performed at Client Onsite Locations and/or other locations designated by Client from time to time upon mutual agreement
of the parties.

3. TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

3.1.          The initial term of the Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and end May 31, 2010.(the “Initial Term”), unless earlier terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Agreement may be renewed by mutual agreement of both parties for one or more
additional two (2) year periods (each a “Renewal Term”). The Initial Term and each and every Renewal Term are collectively referred to as “Term.”

4. FEES

4.1.          Fees.  Client shall pay to Symphony the fees set forth in each applicable Statement of Work to be calculated on time and material/ expenses basis
using man−months as the unit of measurement of billable time based on the greater of the Actual Resource Level or the applicable Core Resource Level for
the applicable month.

4.2.          Core Resource Levels. Symphony shall provide the Services using the number of Resources directed by the Client per the terms of this Section 4
for the applicable period. Client shall pay for all Resources provided by Symphony at the applicable Resource Monthly Rate defined in Section 6.1 below,
but in no event shall Client pay for less than the Core Resource Level as per each applicable Statement of Work.  Client may increase the Actual Resource
Level at any time during the Term and shall have the right to increase the Core Resource Level listed in each applicable Statement of Work one time during
the first year of the Initial Term upon prior mutual agreement with Symphony.

4.3.      Increase or Decrease of Resources. The Actual Resource Level may be increased above the Core Resource Level (and paid for in accordance with
Section 6.1 below) by any amount mutually agreed upon by the parties. Client may affect a reduction of the then current Actual Resource Level by giving
written notice to Symphony of the proposed change no less than ninety (90) days prior to the date the decrease shall apply; provided however that, Client
may not reduce the Actual Resource Level below the Core Resource Level at any time during the Term. Provided that in the event that a Resource that
constitutes part of the Actual Resource Level ceases performing Services under an applicable Statement of Work, Client may request that Symphony not
backfill such position with a Replacement Resource provided that the Actual Resource Level without such replacement Resource remains above the Core
Resource Level.

5. TECHNICAL SKILLS; RESOURCES

5.1.          Resource Categories. All Resources will be categorized according to the Resource Categories listed in the applicable Statement of Work.
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5.2.          Resource Progression Across Resource Categories. As various Resources gain experience over time, such experience shall cause them to progress
upward from one Resource Category to another. Symphony shall progress Resources no more than twice per calendar year and shall provide Client with at
least three (3) months prior written notice before progressing a Resource to a higher Resource Monthly Rate (defined in Section 6.1 below), and Client shall
be billed and shall pay for such Resource at the higher Resource Category rate as of the effective date of such progression unless, during the one (1) month
period beginning from the date Client receives such notice, Client has provided Symphony with written notice of its election to move the progressing
Resource out of the GOC and to replace such Resource with another at the non−progressed Resource Category Level and Resource Monthly Rate. Should
Symphony as a result choose to replace such Resource, Symphony shall not bill Client for such replacement Resource for first two (2) weeks following the
date of such replacement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the progressions applicable to the Resources performing Services pursuant to a
Statement of Work result in an increase of Fees greater than ten percent (10%) of the average monthly Fees for such Services for the twelve (12) month
period immediately preceding such progressions.

5.3.          Performance Improvement Program. In the event that Client notifies Symphony in writing that a Resource is not reasonably performing at a level
commensurate with such Resource’s experience and stated skill set or otherwise not performing in accordance with Client’s reasonable expectations, the
parties will discuss Client’s concerns regarding the performance of the Resource in question.  Symphony shall have thirty (30) days from the date of such
notice to improve the performance of such Resource to a level reasonably satisfactory to Client (the “Performance Improvement Period”).  If, at the end
of the Performance Improvement Period, the Resource in question is not performing at a level satisfactory to the Client, Symphony shall promptly replace
such Resource within a reasonable time from the completion of the Performance Improvement Period and in a manner that reasonably minimizes any
disruption in the Services.  In the event that a Resource is replaced in connection with the Performance Improvement Program, Symphony shall not Invoice
Client for the Services performed by such replacement Resource for initial two (2) weeks following the date such replacement Resource begins performing
Services.

6. RATES & INCREASES

6.1.          Resource Monthly Rate. Each Resource will be billed at, and Client agrees to pay, the applicable calendar monthly rate per Resource Category
and applicable Resource type as set forth in the applicable Statement of Work (collectively, the “Resource Monthly Rate(s)”).

6.2.          Resource at Client Onsite Locations. Except as otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties, Resources shall only be required to travel to a Client
Onsite Location short−term. Client acknowledges that such Resources generally will travel to the United States, Canada, Europe or Asia or other mutually
agreed to countries where Client Onsite Locations are based on an applicable visa and will be subject to the restrictions thereof. Client will be responsible
for paying for such Resource’s travel and related Expenses as per Section 9.3 below.

6.3.          Rate Periods and Increases. All rates and fees quoted in this Agreement are stated and payable solely in U.S. dollars. The Resource Monthly
Rates, as outlined in the applicable Statement of Work, will remain in effect for the first year of the Initial Term.  The Resource Monthly Rates shall then
increase as follows (the Resource Monthly Rates shall not decrease under any circumstances):

6.3.1.           Unless as otherwise identified in the Statement of Work , on each anniversary of the Effective Date, the Resource Monthly Rates and other
costs and expenses specifically identified in the applicable Statement of Work and this Agreement will increase as notified by Symphony; provided,
however, that the annual price increase with regard to the then−current Core Resource Level (identified for the purpose of this Section 6.3.1 as the number
of the most senior level Resources then assigned to the GOC equal to the then−current Core Resource Level set forth in the applicable Statement of Work)
shall be capped at the lesser of (a) ten percent (10%) or (b) a number that is calculated by determining the twelve (12) month percentage increase in the
Hewitt−Norton Salary survey for I.T. Professionals in India measured from the value in December of the last year until the value in December of the year
before. This new rate will remain in effect for a period of one (1) year and shall increase as stated herein on each anniversary of the Effective Date
thereafter.

6.4.          Part Month. In the event a Resource commences or permanently ceases providing Services for Client part way through a calendar month, then
such Resource will be billed at, and Client agrees to pay, a prorated monthly rate for that calendar month that shall be based on the number of days the
Resource actually performed Services for Client in such calendar month.

6.5.          Symphony represents and warrants that, as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Resource rates then in effect as set forth in the Statements
of Work dated as of the Effective Date and entered into by the parties pursuant to this Agreement, are no less favorable than rates charged by Symphony to
an unaffiliated Third Party client located in the United States for substantially similar professional services of substantially similar scope, volume, and
duration being performed in the same geographic region.

7. INVOICING & PAYMENTS

7.1   Invoices.  Invoices for Services provided by Resources (“Invoice(s)”) shall be rendered by Symphony to Client in arrears on a monthly basis. The
amount of such Invoices
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shall be based upon the greater of the Core Resource Level as per the applicable Statement of Work and the Actual Resource Level for the applicable
month.

7.2   Payment of Invoices. Client shall pay all amounts not the subject of a good faith dispute within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the
applicable Invoice. Any invoiced amounts not paid within forty five (45) calendar days after receipt and that are not the subject of a good faith dispute will
be subject to a late payment charge equal to the lesser of one and a half percent (1.5%) per month or the maximum rate allowed by law computed and added
to the outstanding unpaid invoice amount from the forty−sixth (46th) calendar day following the Invoice date.

8. TAXES. Each party will be responsible for any and all personal property taxes on property it owns or leases, franchise and privilege taxes on its
business, and taxes based on its net income or gross receipts. Symphony shall pay all sales, use, and other taxes and duties payable by Symphony on any
goods or services used or consumed by Symphony in providing the Services.  In the case of any sales, use, or other tax and duty during the term of this
Agreement that is assessed on the provision of Services received by Client from Symphony or any of its Affiliates, Client will pay such taxes and duties
directly or shall reimburse Symphony as applicable, including, but not limited to, applicable services taxes. Invoices will separately state the amount of
taxes and duties for which Symphony is requesting payment from Client, if any.

9. EXPENSES

9.1 Capital Expenditure

9.1.1            Unless specified otherwise in the applicable Statement of Work, and except for those items listed in Section 9.1.2 below, Client shall in all
cases be responsible for paying all capital costs for equipment and other items reasonable or necessary for the operation of the GOC or otherwise requested
by Client, including, without limitation the following as applicable:

9.1.1.1     Office improvements requested by Client or otherwise required for delivery of the Services;

9.1.1.2     Servers specific to Client’s software and development environment;

9.1.1.3     Application software;

9.1.1.4     Development software;

9.1.1.5     Third Party software, if any, with which Client’s Products are to be integrated;

9.1.2   Symphony will be responsible for paying for the following items:

9.1.2.1     Office furniture; a computer plus standard software such as Microsoft Office for each computer; and shared general office equipment including
telephones, copiers and fax machines.

9.2   Operating Expenses. Unless specified otherwise in the applicable Statement of Work, Client will be responsible for paying all operating expenses
involved in operating the GOC, including but not limited to operating costs for space over and above the standard GOC facilities allotment and
configuration, except for the following operating expense items for which Symphony will be responsible:

9.2.1   Office−related operating expenses such as rent, utilities and taxes related to the standard GOC facilities allotment and configuration; and

9.2.2   Local telephone service to the GOC.

9.3   Travel and Related Expenses.  Client shall be responsible for payment of all travel and related expenses approved by Client in connection with delivery
of the Services, including but not limited to those incurred by Resources traveling to Client Onsite Locations, as follows: (i) visa processing fees and related
fees; (ii) Coach−class roundtrip airfare; (iii) a Per Diem (daily) allowance currently set at US $50.00 for US and €55/day for Europe for the first year of the
Initial Term and increased thereafter as per Section 6.3.1 above; (iv) car rental costs; and (v) costs of accommodation.

9.4   [reserved]

9.5   Use of Client Facilities. Client at its expense shall provide to all Onsite Resources local infrastructure including but not limited to desk space, office
telephone, desktop computers and applicable software.

10 CONFIDENTIALITY

10.1       Confidential Information; Nondisclosure. The parties acknowledge and agree that in the course of delivering and receiving the Services hereunder, they
may provide each other with certain nonpublic information, documentation and material relating to themselves and/or to their respective Affiliates or
customers, which information shall be clearly and prominently labeled as “Confidential” or which would, by its nature, be understood by a reasonable
person to be the confidential or proprietary business information of the party disclosing such information (the “Disclosing Party”) or its Affiliates or
customers (collectively, the “Confidential Information”).  The party receiving another party’s Confidential Information (the “Receiving Party”) and such
party’s employees, Affiliates, officers, directors, agents, attorneys, accountants, auditors and other advisors shall hold such Confidential Information of the
other party in strict
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confidence and shall use it only in connection with performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

10.2       Exclusions.The term “Confidential Information” shall not include information that:  (i) is or has become publicly available without restriction through
no fault of the Receiving Party; (ii) is or has been received by the Receiving Party without restriction from a Third Party lawfully in possession of such
information; (iii) is independently developed by the Receiving Party without reference to the Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information; (iv) the
Disclosing Party gives the Receiving Party written authorization to disclose; (v) is or has been disclosed by the Disclosing Party to a Third Party without a
restriction on disclosure; or (vi) is required to be disclosed by law or legal processes, provided, however, that to the extent legally permissible the Receiving
Party provides the Disclosing Party with written notice prior to any such required disclosure.

11 CLIENT PRODUCTS

11.1         License to Client Products; Client Warranty.  (1) Client hereby grants Symphony and its Affiliates for use by Symphony and/or its Affiliates and
subcontractors a fully paid−up, non−exclusive, non−transferable (except pursuant to Section 22.1 below), worldwide, royalty−free license to access, display,
perform, reproduce and otherwise use the Client Products for the sole purpose of performing the Services during the Term.  (2) Client hereby represents and
warrants that it has full right, title and authority in and to all of the Client Products necessary to grant the aforementioned license.

11.2         Restrictions. Symphony shall not, and shall not authorize any Third Party to (1) market, sell, lease, rent, sublicense, distribute or otherwise make
available to any Third Party the Client Products or any aspect thereof, except as expressly permitted by Client; or (2) remove or alter any legends or other
notices from the Client Products.

11.3         Return of Client Products. Upon Client’s written request, the Client Products that are no longer required by Symphony for the performance of the
Services shall be returned to Client after upon termination of this Agreement. All Expenses of the freight and insurance, as well as incidental charges
associated with returning such Client Products shall be charged to Client in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

12 SYMPHONY OBLIGATIONS.

12.1         The Services will be performed in a professional manner using qualified personnel and in accordance with any specific material terms and
conditions of the Statement of Work. For any breach of the foregoing, Client’s exclusive remedy, and Symphony’s entire liability, shall be the
re−performance of such Services.

12.2         In providing the Services, Symphony will use commercially reasonable efforts to detect, eradicate, and will not knowingly introduce, threats
known as software viruses, worms, Trojan horses, trap doors, or other malicious computer instructions, intentional devices or techniques that were designed
to threaten, infect, damage, disable, or shut down a computer system or any component thereof.

12.3         Symphony will require all Resources to sign a confidentiality agreement prior to beginning work on any Client project.

12.4         Restriction on Resource Transfer.  Should Symphony currently or in the future operate a GOC for any Named Competitor (defined below), then
during the period of twelve (12) months immediately following the date that any such Resource ceases his/her assignment with the Client GOC, Symphony
will not assign such Resource to a Named Competitor’s GOC.  For purposes hereof, the term “Named Competitor” is defined as any entity contained in a
mutually agreed upon list of up to five (5) direct competitors of Client’s core business as set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

12.5         Noninfringement. No Work Product provided by Symphony to Client hereunder will, infringe any third party’s Intellectual Property Rights.  The
foregoing obligation shall not include (i) any Client Products, specifications, instructions, designs or information provided to Symphony by Client (or on
behalf of Client by a Third Party) and/or Symphony’s substantial compliance therewith, (ii) any modification by any party (other than Symphony) to any
Work Product, (iii) any combination of any Work Product with Client Products or product(s) of Client or of any Third Party, or (iv) any use of any Work
Product by or on behalf of or at the direction or upon instruction of Client which Work Product is not, in and of itself and apart from such use thereof, the
subject of a Third Party claim of Intellectual Property infringement.

13 CLIENT OBLIGATIONS.

13.1         Client shall appoint and make available for all Symphony projects a Liaison, who will:

13.1.1      Be the main point of contact between Client and Symphony;

13.1.2      Have authority to make binding decisions for Client; and

13.1.3      Provide Symphony with access to relevant Client personnel who can provide information needed by Symphony in connection with its
performance of the Agreement.

13.2         Client shall timely provide assistance, information and cooperation reasonably requested by Symphony to enable it to properly and timely provide
the Services; and
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13.3         No Client Product and no specifications, instructions, designs, information, materials or Intellectual Property provided by Client to Symphony
hereunder will infringe any U.S. patent issued at the Effective Date, or copyrights or trademark rights of any Third Party.

14 OWNERSHIP

14.1         All work product prepared for Client hereunder pursuant to the Description of Services (the “Work Product”) including all right, title and interest
therein and thereto, including, without limitation, all Intellectual Property rights therein, but expressly excluding any and all Symphony IP (defined below)
and Third Party materials (including, without limitation, Client Products and derivative works thereof), shall, upon payment in full therefor, belong to Client
and be deemed Works Made For Hire, as defined under U.S. Copyright Law, in the course of performing the Services.  To the extent that any right, title
and/or interest to any Work Product may not, by operation of law, vest in Client, or is not considered to be a Work Made For Hire, then all right, title and
interest therein, including, without limitation, all Intellectual Property rights, shall be and hereby is assigned to Client upon payment in full therefor. 
Symphony agrees to provide Client with reasonable assistance to perfect its rights and title to such Work Product, at Client’s written request and sole
expense, including executing any instruments of assignment necessary to affect the intent of this Section 14.1.  Client agrees to compensate Symphony for
such assistance at Symphony’s rates then in effect when such assistance is rendered.

14.2         Subject to obligations under Section 10 above and each party’s respective Intellectual Property rights, neither party shall be prevented from using
its knowledge, experience, know−how and/or expertise, whether gained prior to, during or after any Services performed under this Agreement, in any
manner and for any purpose whatsoever, including, without limitation, to perform work for Third Parties including work which results in the creation of
materials having formats, organization, use, function, structure and/or sequence similar to materials developed for Client.

14.3         Notwithstandingthe foregoing or anything else set forth in this Agreement or any Statement of Work, Symphony shall retain all right, title and
interest in and to all property, including but not limited to Intellectual Property, developed by or on behalf of Symphony, its Affiliates and/or subcontractors
or otherwise owned or licensed by Symphony, its Affiliates and/or subcontractors that 1) existed prior to this Agreement 2) is independently developed
outside of this Agreement without any contributions of Client or 3) does not include Client Intellectual Property or Client Confidential Information
(collectively, the “Symphony IP”).

14.4 No Symphony IP or Third Party Intellectual Property rights shall be embedded by Symphony in any Work Product without Client’s prior written consent.

15 INDEMNIFICATION

15.1         Symphony Indemnity. Symphony shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Client, its Affiliates, subcontractors, officers, employees, directors
and subsidiaries from and against any and all claims, liabilities, damages, expenses, fines, penalties or costs of whatsoever nature, (including reasonable
attorney’s fees and expenses) to the extent arising from any Third Party claims arising out of:

15.1.1      Injuries to persons or death resulting from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Resources in the operation of the GOC, except to the
extent any such injury or death results from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Client; or

15.1.2      The infringement of any third party’s Intellectual Property by any Work Product delivered in connection with the Services (a “Symphony
Infringement Claim”) except to the extent any such claim is required to be indemnified by Client pursuant to Section 15.2.2 below.  A Symphony
Infringement Claim shall not include claims related to (i) any Client Products, specifications, instructions, designs or information provided to Symphony by
Client (or on behalf of Client by a Third Party) and/or Symphony’s substantial compliance therewith, (ii) any modification by any party (other than
Symphony) to any Work Product, (iii) any combination of any Work Product with Client Products or product(s) of Client or of any Third Party, or (iv) any
use of any Work Product by or on behalf of or at the direction or upon instruction of Client which Work Product is not, in and of itself and apart from such
use thereof, the subject of a Symphony Infringement Claim.  In the event that any Work Product becomes or appears likely to become the subject of a
Symphony Infringement Claim, then Symphony reserves the right to procure for Client the right to enable Client to continue to use the Work Product in
question, or to modify or replace the Work Product in question with non−infringing and functionally equivalent material.

15.1.3      The foregoing provisions of Section 15.1.2 herein state Symphony’s entire liability and Client’s exclusive remedies for infringement of
intellectual property rights of any kind.

15.2         Client Indemnity. Client shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Symphony, its Affiliates, subcontractors, officers, employees, directors and
subsidiaries from and against any and all claims, liabilities, damages, expenses, fines, penalties or costs of whatsoever nature, (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses) arising from any Third Party claim(s) arising out of:
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15.2.1            Injuries to persons or death resulting from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Client, its employees or agents, except to the extent
any such injury or death results from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Symphony;

15.2.2            The infringement of Third Party’s Intellectual Property rights by any Client Product, specifications, instructions, designs or information
provided to Symphony by Client (or on behalf of Client by a third party) and/or Symphony’s substantial compliance therewith (a “Client Infringement
Claim”); or

15.2.3            The integration or use of any Work Product by Client or a Third Party, including without limitation claims brought by Client’s employees,
direct or indirect customers, agents, vendors, partners or shareholders, except to the extent any such claim is a Symphony Infringement Claim required to be
indemnified by Symphony pursuant to Section 15.1.2 above.

15.3        Indemnity Procedures. As a condition to the foregoing indemnity obligations of both Parties, the indemnifying party (the “Indemnifying Party”)
agrees to pay any costs and damages finally awarded (including any settlement amounts) against the party seeking indemnification (the “Indemnified
Party”), provided that:  the Indemnified Party (a) notifies the Indemnifying Party promptly, in writing, of the action, provided any delay or failure of the
Indemnified Party to give prompt notice of any such claim shall not affect the rights of the Indemnified Party hereunder unless, and only to the extent that,
such delay or failure is prejudicial to or otherwise adversely affects the Indemnifying Party; (b) provides the Indemnifying Party all reasonable information
and assistance to settle or defend the action (at the Indemnifying Party’s expense); (c) grants the Indemnifying Party sole authority and control of the
defense or settlement of the action provided that no compromise or settlement of any claim admitting liability of or imposing duties of performance or is in
any way prejudicial to the Indemnified Party may be effected without the prior written consent of such Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed; and (d) shall have the right to participate in but not to control the defense and/or settlement of any Indemnified Claim with
counsel of its choosing at its own expense.  The Indemnifying Party agrees to keep the Indemnified Party regularly and completely informed of the status of
any claim hereunder.

16 DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES; LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

16.1         DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES. CLIENT UNDERSTANDS THAT SYMPHONY IS PERFORMING THE SERVICES HEREUNDER IN
RELATION TO SYSTEMS AND DATA THAT HAVE BEEN PRODUCED BY CLIENT, OR SUPPLIED TO CLIENT BY THIRD PARTIES, AND
FOR ALL OF WHICH SYMPHONY HAS NO RESPONSIBILITY. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN SECTION 12 OF THIS AGREEMENT,
SYMPHONY ON BEHALF OF ITSELF AND ITS AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES WITH REGARD TO
THE SERVICES, WORK PRODUCT AND ANY OTHER INFORMATION OR MATERIAL PROVIDED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE,
NONINFRINGEMENT, ERROR−FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED SERVICE.

16.2         LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY OR ANY OF ITS RESPECTIVE AFFILIATES OR
SUBCONTRACTORS, BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL, OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF BUSINESS, LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF GOODWILL OR OTHER LOSS
(INCLUDING SUBSTITUTION OF SERVICES) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY THIRD PARTY SERVICES
DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH EVEN IF PREVIOUSLY ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES AND
REGARDLESS OF ITS NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER FAULT AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH LIABILITY SOUNDS IN CONTRACT,
NEGLIGENCE, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, BREACH OF WARRANTIES, FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OR ANY OTHER THEORY OF
LEGAL LIABILITY.  EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS REQUIRED TO BE INDEMNIFIED UNDER SECTION 15 ABOVE, EACH PARTY’S AND ITS
RESEPCTIVE AFFILIATES’ AND SUBCONTRACTORS’ CUMULATIVE LIABILTY FOR ALL CLAIMS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, EXCEPT
CLAIMS FOR AMOUNTS DUE HEREUNDER, SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT PAID BY CLIENT AND RETAINED BY SYMPHONY
FOR WORK PERFORMED UNDER THE STATEMENT OF WORK UNDER WHICH SUCH CLAIM PRINCIPALLY AROSE (WHICH FOR THE
PURPOSE OF CLARITY EXCLUDES PAYMENTS FOR TAXES, COSTS AND EXPENSES) IN THE TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD
IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE DATE THAT THE FIRST SUCH CLAIM AROSE.

16.3         The parties agree that no action, regardless of form, arising out of this Agreement may be brought by either party after one (1) year from the date
such cause of action accrued.

17 TERMINATION

17.1         Termination for Convenience. After completion of the Initial Term but not earlier, either party may deliver to the other party written notice of its
decision to terminate this Agreement with or without cause upon one hundred
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eighty (180) days prior written notice, and any such termination shall be effective on the 181st day after receipt of any such notice by the other party.

17.2         Termination for Cause. In the event of any material breach or default by either party under this Agreement (except for failure to pay fees or
Expenses), the non−performing party shall have sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice from the other party, detailing the nature of such material
breach or default and expressly stating that such notice is notice of a material breach of the Agreement which if not cured within said timeframe shall
constitute grounds for termination of the Agreement, to cure such breach or default, and if not corrected within the said period, the notifying party shall have
the right, at its option, to terminate this Agreement; except in case of any failure to pay  Fees or Expenses due and owing hereunder, which failure must be
cured within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice thereof.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, following ten days written notice to Client of any failure to
pay any fees or Expenses when due, Symphony may, at its option, at any time either terminate this Agreement or temporarily discontinue any or all Services
provided hereunder.  If (1) Services billed in an Invoice are not disputed as required by this Section within sixty (60) days of receipt of the Invoice by Client
or (2) Services or Work Product are otherwise accepted or approved by Client, then those Services and the associated Work Product shall be conclusively
determined to have been provided as required by the Agreement and applicable standards of professionalism. The parties agree that the requirements of this
Section 17.2 and the procedures it sets forth are material terms to this Agreement.

17.3         Bankruptcy. If either Client or Symphony becomes insolvent, fails to pay, or admits in writing its inability to pay debts as they become due; or if
either party applies for, consents to, or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or other custodian for such party or for a substantial part of such
party or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or, if a trustee, receiver or other custodian is appointed for such party or for a substantial
part of such party’s property and is not discharged within sixty (60) days; or if any bankruptcy, reorganization, debt arrangement or other proceeding under
any bankruptcy law, or any dissolution or liquidation proceeding is commenced by, consented to, or acquiesced in by such party and has not been dismissed
within sixty (60) days; or, if either party ceases to conduct its business in the normal course, this Agreement may be terminated by the other party
immediately upon delivery of written notice to the affected party.

17.4         Payment of Fees. In the event of termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, except in case of termination of this Agreement by
Client pursuant to the terms of Section 17.1 above and Section 17.2 above due to material breach by Symphony where certain invoiced amounts are
disputed by Client in good faith, Client shall promptly pay Symphony in full all fees and Expenses due through the later of the effective date of termination
of this Agreement or through the end of the Initial Term for each applicable Statement of Work (based on the outstanding balance payable under each such
Statement of Work through the end of the Initial Term of each such Statement of Work) (the “Payment Amount”).  It is understood and agreed by the
parties that the calculation of damages suffered by Symphony under such circumstances would be difficult to ascertain.  The parties agree that the Payment
Amount is a reasonable and justified approach to addressing this uncertainty and agree that this approach would provide fair and appropriate compensation
to Symphony.  In case of termination of this Agreement by Client under Section 17.2 above due to material breach by Symphony, Client may temporarily
withhold payment of those amounts which are the subject of a good faith dispute arising out of the alleged material breach pending resolution of any such
dispute.

18. INSURANCE

18.1 During the Term Symphony will maintain the following levels of insurance coverage for the Services to be provided hereunder and the operation of the
GOC.

18.1.1      Commercial General Liability Insurance for bodily injury and property damage with a limit of USD One Million ($1,000,000) per occurrence and
USD Two Million ($2,000,000) in the aggregate.

18.1.2      Worker’s Compensation/Employers’ Liability. Insurance statutory limits, covering Symphony’s employees pursuant to applicable state workers’
compensation laws.

18.1.3      Professional Liability Insurance for errors and omissions with a limit of USD Five Million ($5,000,000) per occurrence or per claim and USD
Five Million ($5,000,000) in the aggregate.

18.1.4      Umbrella and/or Excess Liability insurance on an occurrence basis with limits not less than USD Five Million ($5,000,000) per occurrence and
USD Five Million ($5,000,000) in the aggregate in excess of the limits provided by Symphony’s Employer’s Liability and Commercial General Liability.

18.2 Upon Client’s written request, Symphony shall without undue delay submit a copy of insurance certificates evidencing such insurance coverage.

19 NON−HIRE. Neither party shall, without the prior written consent of a duly authorized officer of the other party, directly or indirectly solicit, hire or
otherwise retain as an employee or independent contractor any current or former employee, consultant, contractor or subcontractor of the other party, its
Affiliates or subcontractors, during the Term and for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter (or twelve (12) months after the other party’s relationship
with any such employee, consultant, contractor or subcontractor is terminated if prior to termination of the Agreement).
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20. ADVERTISING AND PUBLICITY.  Symphony may include Client in its public list of clients.  Symphony and its subsidiaries may use Client’s name and
logo in connection with signage and recruitment materials related to the GOC and the Services.  Except for the foregoing authorized uses, neither party shall
publicly use the other party’s name, logo or other trademark/service mark without prior written authorization of such other party except as required by law.

21. DATA PROTECTION AND PRIVACY. It is the express intention of the Parties that Symphony will not process any Personal Data on behalf of Client
under this Agreement. Nevertheless, should Client wish Symphony to have to Personal Data on its behalf under this Agreement, it shall notify Symphony in
writing prior to making Personal Data available to Symphony, and upon written agreement by Symphony to provide such processing services, both parties
shall comply with their respective obligations under applicable laws and regulations in connection therewith; provided, however, that Client understands and
agrees that, where necessary to perform the Services, Symphony personnel globally will have access to Personal Data collected and controlled by Client and
provided further that Client agrees that it shall have the sole responsibility for compliance with any and all requirements under any applicable data privacy
laws or regulations regarding the collection of and the transfer of such Personal Data to any other country.

22. MISCELLANEOUS

22.1         Binding Effect and Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, and their successors and assigns.  Neither party may
assign this Agreement, its obligations hereunder to any Third Party (excluding Symphony Affiliates), without the prior written consent of the other party,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, and any assignment, delegation or subcontract in violation of this provision shall
be void and of no effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such prior written consent shall be required in the event of any sale of all or substantially all of
the assets or the controlling interest of either party to a Third Party that is not a direct competitor of the other party, or in the event of any merger or
acquisition of or by either party to an entity that is not a direct competitor of the other party, and in this event this Agreement shall be binding upon any such
successor.

22.2         Independent Contractors. The relationship between Symphony and Client is solely that of independent contractors and not that of an agency,
partnership, joint venture or employment relationship, and nothing herein shall be deemed to authorize either party to act for, represent or bind the other. 
This Agreement is non−exclusive between the parties, and shall not be interpreted or construed to prevent Client or Symphony from entering into a similar
agreement or relationship with a Third Party. All Resources providing Services hereunder shall be employees, consultants or subcontractors of Symphony,
and none shall be considered employees of Client.  Symphony shall be responsible for payment of all withholding taxes, all other payroll deductions and
social insurance obligations with respect thereto. Client shall not be responsible for the payment of workers’ compensation insurance, disability benefits or
any fringe benefits provided to Resources.

22.3         Force Majeure. Except for required payments, neither party shall be liable for failure to perform or for delay in performing its obligations to the
extent and as long as such failure or delay is due to natural disasters, acts of war, acts of terror, significant changes in applicable laws or regulations or any
other causes reasonably beyond the control of such party (each a “Force Majeure Event”). Any party desiring to invoke the protection of this Section shall
promptly notify the other party of the Force Majeure Event and the extent to which the affected party will be unable to perform its obligations hereunder.
Such excuse shall continue as long as the Force Majeure Event continues. Upon cessation of such Force Majeure Event, such party shall promptly resume
performance hereunder.  Each party shall give the other party prompt written notice when it is again fully able to perform such obligations.  If, as a result of
a Force Majeure Event, a party is unable to fully perform its obligations hereunder for any consecutive period of ninety (90) days, the other party shall have
the right to terminate this Agreement in its entirety, upon providing written notice to the non−performing party, such termination to be effective no earlier
than thirty (30) days from the date of delivery of such notice. If, as a result of natural disasters, act of war, or a cause beyond the control of Symphony
results in difficulty in execution of Services at the GOC, Symphony will have the right to continue the execution of work under this Agreement at another
facility, upon prior approval of Client and the provisions of this Agreement shall apply mutatis mutandis to such other facility.

22.4         Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall, as material term of this Agreement, be given in
writing to the other party via hand delivery, or certified U.S. mail return receipt requested, or by nationally recognized overnight delivery service to the
following individuals. The parties by notice may designate another address or individual to which a required notice may be directed. Notices shall be
effective upon receipt.  Each notice sent or mailed in the manner described above shall be deemed provided for all purposes at such time as it is delivered to
the addressee (with the return receipt or the delivery receipt being deemed conclusive, but not exclusive, evidence of such delivery) or at such time as
delivery is refused by the addressee upon presentation.

If to Client, to:
Lawson Software, Inc.
380 St. Peter Street

St. Paul, MN 55102
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Attn: Lawson General Counsel

With a copy to: Jim Sanderson, VP Corp Admin

And if to Symphony:

Symphony Service Corp.
2475 Hanover Street
Palo Alto, CA 94304
Attn:  Legal Department

22.5         Governing Law. This Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties, and any claims or disputes relating thereto, shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota, USA (excluding the choice of law rules thereof). The parties agree that any litigation
brought under or in connection with this Agreement will be brought in the court of competent jurisdiction located in the State of Minnesota.  The parties
hereby irrevocably submit and waive in advance any objection based upon forum non conveniens or lack of personal jurisdiction of such courts for any such
litigation.

22.6         Severability. If any provision or provisions of this Agreement shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, or for any
reason invalid, unenforceable, void or voidable, such provision or provisions shall be deemed to be null and void and the remainder of this Agreement shall,
to the extent practicable, remain in full force and effect.  To the extent a provision of this Agreement is in invalid, unenforceable, void or voidable, the
parties agree to negotiate in good faith to amend such to conform as nearly as possible, in accordance with applicable law, to the intended purpose and intent
of the original provision.

22.7         Entire Agreement; Section Headings; Counterparts. This Agreement together with Exhibit A hereto constitutes the entire agreement between
Symphony and Client with respect to the transactions contemplated herein and the subject matter hereof, and it supersedes and replaces all prior oral or
written agreements, commitments or understandings with respect to the transactions contemplated herein and the subject matter hereof. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, this Agreement does not supersede or replace any portion of the Reseller Agreement.  No amendment, modification or discharge of this
Agreement shall be valid or binding, unless set forth in writing and duly executed and delivered by an authorized representative of both Client and
Symphony. In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any transactional or other document issued
in connection herewith, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall, in all instances, govern and control, provided, however, that in the event of an
inconsistency or conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any Statement of Work issued hereunder where the applicable term(s) of
the applicable Statement of Work expressly state that they shall take precedence over the competing term(s) in the Agreement, then such Statement of Work
term(s) shall govern and control in such instance. The parties acknowledge and agree that any preprinted terms on any transactional or other document
issued in connection herewith (including, without limitation, purchase orders, RFPs, bills of lading, etc.) are per se null and void and of no force or effect.
The section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only, shall not be deemed to be a part of this Agreement for any
purpose, and shall not in any way define or affect the meaning, construction or scope of any of the provisions of this Agreement.  To facilitate execution,
this Agreement may be executed in as many counterparts as may be required, and all counterparts shall collectively constitute a single Agreement.

22.8         Waiver. No delay or failure on the part of either party hereto in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Agreement shall impair any
such right, power or privilege or be construed as a waiver or any acquiescence thereto; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or
privilege preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege.  No waiver shall be valid against either party,
unless made in writing and signed by the party against whom enforcement of such waiver is sought, and then only to the extent expressly specified therein.

22.9         Third Party Beneficiaries.  Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any
person or entity other than the parties hereto any legal or equitable claim, right or remedy; rather, this Agreement is intended to be for the sole and exclusive
benefit of the parties.

22.10       Survival. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, termination of this Agreement shall not relieve either party from any obligation
it has to make any payments to the other party as required under this Agreement. Sections 1, 7.2, 8, 10, 11.1(2), 14, 15, 16, 17.4, 19 and 22 of this
Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason and remain in full force and effect.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Symphony and Client have each caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective duly authorized representatives as
of the Effective Date.

LAWSON SOFTWARE AMERICAS, INC. SYMPHONY SERVICE CORP.

By: /s/ Curt Olson By: /s/ Alan Harlan
Authorized Signature Authorized Signature

Curt Olson Alan Harlan
Print Name Print Name

Director − Global Sourcing President
Title Title

September 23, 2009 September 24, 2009
Date Date
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EXHIBIT A

NAMED COMPETITORS

1. SAP AG

2. Oracle USA, Inc.

3. Infor Global Solutions

4. Microsoft Corporation

5 CGS, Inc. (Blue Cherry)
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Exhibit 12.1

LAWSON SOFTWARE, INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

LAWSON SOFTWARE, INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Quarter Ended
August 31, Fiscal Years Ended May 31,

(In thousands, except ratios) 2009 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Fixed charges:
Interest expense on indebtedness (1) $ 4,450 $ 15,625 $ 15,976 $ 5,031 $ 53 $ 49

Rent interest factor (2) 2,209 9,671 10,467 8,994 5,454 4,733

Total fixed charges $ 6,659 $ 25,296 $ 26,443 $ 14,025 $ 5,507 $ 4,782

Earnings:
Income (loss) before provision for income

taxes (1) $ 14,742 $ 35,922 $ 41,649 $ (7,434) $ 27,667 $ 8,117

Fixed charges 6,659 25,296 26,443 14,025 5,507 4,782

Total earnings $ 21,401 $ 61,218 $ 68,092 $ 6,591 $ 33,174 $ 12,899

Ratio 3.21 2.42 2.58 0.47(3) 6.02 2.70

(1)          Adjusted for the impact of our retrospective adoption of FSP APB 14−1 on June 1, 2009

(2)          Approximately1/3 of the rent expense is deemed representative of the interest factor

(3)          Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges was below a one−to−one coverage by $7.4 million due to our net loss recorded in fiscal 2007.



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

I, Harry Debes, certify that:

1.            I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10−Q of Lawson Software, Inc.;

2.            Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.            Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.            The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(e) and 15d−15(e)) and internal control over reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(f) and 15d−15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a)            Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)           Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)            Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

d)           Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant’s internal
control and financial reporting; and

5.            The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)            All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)           Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: September 30, 2009 /s/ HARRY DEBES
Harry Debes
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

I, Robert A. Schriesheim, certify that:

1.            I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10−Q of Lawson Software, Inc.;

2.            Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.            Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.            The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(e) and 15d−15(e)) and internal control over reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(f) and 15d−15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a)            Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)           Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)            Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

d)           Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant’s internal
control and financial reporting; and

5.            The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)            All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)           Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: September 30, 2009 /s/ ROBERT A. SCHRIESHEIM
Robert A. Schriesheim
Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer,
and Director



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. §1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES−OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Lawson Software, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10−Q for the period ended August 31, 2009 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Harry Debes, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.    The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.    The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ HARRY DEBES
Harry Debes
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
September 30, 2009



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. §1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES−OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Lawson Software, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10−Q for the period ended August 31, 2009 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Harry Debes, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.    The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.    The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ ROBERT A. SCHRIESHEIM
Robert A. Schriesheim
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
and Director
September 30, 2009
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